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Chairman Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the "Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to present
the audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017
to the shareholders.

During the year, the oil and gas industry has continued to be in the
doldrums with the sluggish international oil prices and fall in natural
gas price in the PRC. Under this weak market situation and coupled
with the downward pressure on the PRC's domestic economy and
the low energy demand in the industrial sector which the Group's
LNG business had, during the year, faced hefty challenges.

During the financial year, the Group recorded consolidated
turnover of approximately RMB7,973 million (2016: approximately
RMB6,841 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
16.5%. The loss after tax of approximately RMB105 million (2016:
approximately RMB20 million).

Notwithstanding to the above, the Group has continued to seek
and explore the expansion of its LNG distribution channel through
proposed collaboration with industry player(s) and/or state-owned
enterprises; foster strategic cooperation with global renowned oil
and gas supplier to facilitate the trading business of the Group and
sought to further expand collaboration with quality end users of
nature gas, which is expected to make positive contribution to the
business and operations of the Group.

During the Year, the Group raised addition fund through two share
subscriptions with over RMB500 million cash injection to generate
additional cash flows for the Group’s operations. The fund raising
will improve the Group's ability to explore business opportunities
to diversify the Group's business and/or portfolio.

On 13 March 2017, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
EMIT= MR E R R A (Guangzhou Yuanheng Gas Co., Limited)
("Purchaser”),entered into an agreement with sole shareholder
of BB LIk EERE B R A F(Guangzhou Ju Yuan Investment
Development Company Limited)(“Vendor”), pursuant to which
the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor
conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest in EJMNZEIT
&R AR A F(Guangzhou Ju Yuan Investment Development
Company Limited)(“Target Company”).
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Chairman Statement
FEHRE

The Target Company holds two assets: (i) 11.5% equity interest
in RMIERF AL E f#(Quanzhou Zhenrong Petrochemical Storage
Company Limited), which principally engaged in the construction
and operation of storage facilities, and the import and export of
goods and technology, and (i) 19.9998% interest in E M ERKL
HEERPHE(BRE)(Guangzhou Hui Yin Wo Feng Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership), which is principally engaged in
equity investment and the provision of corporate and investment
advisory service, for a consideration of RMB1 (the “Acquisition”).
The Acquisition was completed on 21 March 2017.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 13 March 2017, based
on its unaudited financial statements of the Target Company
as at 28 February 2017, the Target Company had net assets of
approximately RMB4 million. The net profit after taxation for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was approx. RMB3.4 million.

The Acquisition was a strategic reinforcement of the Group's
existing energy trading business and can create long-term and
strategic interests for the Group, including but not limited to the
following:

o to foster collaboration with downstream users/facility
providers, thereby expanding and improving the Group's
operational flexibility;

J to diversify the business portfolio of the Group, broaden the
source of income and enhance value to the shareholders; and

J in view of the enormous growth potential of online
financial platform and the increasing popularity of financial
transactions via the Internet, the Acquisition will enable the
Group to seize the market opportunities and expand its
operations.
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Chairman Statement
FEHRE

According to China’s 13th 5-Year Plan, the energy consumption
structure is to be adjusted to lower the amount of carbon
emissions. As a solution to the curtailment, natural gas
consumption will be boosted to about 10% of the total energy
consumption in PRC, from 5.9% in 2015. Following with the ongoing
supply-side structural reform, the shift from coal to clean energy
will improve the consumption demand in the natural gas market.
From a longer term perspective, the energy market are expected to
lead to a healthy and sustainable growth of the natural gas industry
in the PRC. Meanwhile, PRC’s “One Belt One Road” initiative
also focus on going out strategy for PRC’s energy equipment,
technologies, standards and services which driving a better
environment for the development of energy enterprises.

Looking ahead, the management is mindful of the market
environment and will continue to adopt cautionary steps in and
implementing various to mitigate the adverse impact on the
business arising from challenges as in this market condition.
Moreover, the Group will continues to develop its business in
natural gas sector and to explore new business opportunities in
order to create value for its shareholders.

On behalf of the board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders and business partners for their continuing
support. | would also like to express my appreciation to our
management team and all staff for their outstanding contributions
and hard work over the past year.

4  Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JT=¥ARIEM A R A ]

Annual Report 2017 F 3§

REFEN+ =058 - EREESBAE
8 B DA B B IR © VR R IBLBE Y — TR AR
TR PERARHEEGRERBEENLE
KT —HFNS9%EMEL10% - BEE
HRRAB IR EORE - IERRAIBRE
IREVEB R IR IMRARTIGHEER R - #
REAER  BLRMSAMESERFBERR
RITENREMSERR - AR REHN[—
TR IBRTHEINTREERRE &
M~ BERRBHELEBR - S REIR
EENBEREEFNFOERIER

RERK - EEBEMIMERENRES
HERALATERBRERARERTS
R RODRBR B A ER A N R &  tEoh
AEBRESHRERARBPINER LR
RINEBHEASEBRAEETZEE -

AARKREFERURABMERNEHAIER
HOBESE  TRHICEEELRMEET
RBE—FNRLBERRE N TIE -



Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group

Financial Review
AREBZEERBEN RN M OB SR ER

BUSINESS REVIEW

Group results

For the year ended 31 March 2017 and at present, the Group has
been principally engaged in (i) trading of oil and gas products and
the provision of related consultancy services; and (ii) processing,
distribution, sales, trading and transportation of LNG and other
auxiliary operations and networks in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB7,973 million
(2016: approximately RMB6,841 million) with loss after tax of
approximately RMB105 million (2016: approximately RMB20
million). The Group's performance for the year ended 31 March
2017 were contributed mainly by the production and sales of LNG
and the trading of oil and gas business.

The Group's financial results were adversely affected as compared
to that for the corresponding period in 2016 is mainly due to supply
side driven factor and challenging market conditions (as further
elaborated under the sections headed “Production and sales of
LNG" and "Oil and gas transactions”).

Notwithstanding, the management is exploring avenues
in improving its profit margins, as well as seeking business
opportunities to diversify the Group’s businesses and/or portfolio
with a view to improve its overall financial and operational
performance.

Production and sales of LNG

During the year, the Group produced approximately 440,943,000
cubic meters of LNG, representing an increase of approximately
111,134,000 cubic meters or 33.7% compared with the last year.
The turnover from the sales of LNG business for the year ended
31 March 2017 was approximately RMB1,610 million representing
an increase of approximately RMB624 million or 63.3% compared
with the last year, contributing approximately 20.2% of the
total turnover of the Group. Gross profit, sightly increased by
approximately RMB1 million to approximately RMB19 million (2016:
approximately RMB18 million), gross profit margin however, fell
from approximately 1.8% to approximately 1.2%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group

Financial Review

ZIKEIZEIEFETFIHH& Tﬁgﬁ @Eﬁ

The low utilization level of the Group’s LNG processing plants
in last reporting period was due to unscheduled facilities
maintenance resulted from change of gas sources by upstream
supplier. However, the production level of the Group’s LNG
processing plants return to normal level and led to an increase of
the production volume for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The low profit margin for the year ended 31 March 2017 was due
to (1) stiff market competition against LNG in PRC and (2) the
continuing fall in natural gas price which led to the depression of
the LNG industry.

Notwithstanding the above, the management has (1) sought
and explored the expansion of its LNG downstream distribution
channel through proposed collaboration with industry player(s)
and/or state-owned enterprises; and (2) sought to further expand
collaboration with quality end users of natural gas, which is
expected to make positive contribution to the business and
operations of the Group.

Oil and gas transactions

During the year, revenue arising from oil and gas transactions
increased to approximately RMB6,183 million from approximately
RMB5,657 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB526 million or 9.3% compared with the last year, contributing
approximately 77.5% of the total turnover of the Group. Gross
profit, however, decreased to approximately RMB22 million from
approximately RMB6&0 million, with gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 1.1% to approximately 0.36% as a result of the
fluctuation of oil and gas prices at the industry low range and the
overall doldrums of the oil and gas industry.

Given the difficult overall oil and gas industry environment, the
Group has implemented different measures to overcome the
hard times in the oil and gas industry and believe that oil and gas
market will start its growth momentum. Moreover, to strengthen
the Group's trading business, the management is (1)seeking to
formulate strategic cooperation with globally-renowned oil and gas
suppliers and (2) continue to adopt cautionary steps while seeking
profitable trading opportunities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group

Financial Review
AREB 2 EIRE 515w Mo AT 7% Ol gE

Prospect

During the year, the Group's business was affected by adverse
market conditions in the oil and gas industry as described in
the previous sections. It is expected that although the domestic
natural gas market is currently in an over supply position during the
transitional gas users adjustment period, the policy of the Chinese
government to adjust the overall energy structure and to increase
the use of natural gas is clear in a long run, and the prospect of the
natural gas industry remains favourable. Meanwhile, PRC's “One
Belt One Road” initiative also focuses on going out strategy for
PRC’s energy equipment, technologies, standards and services
would be conducive to the market environment, in which the Group
operates.

The management is mindful of the market environment and
will continue to adopt cautionary steps and implement various
strategies to mitigate the adverse impact on the business arising
from challenges as in this market condition. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to develop its businesses in natural gas sector
and to explore new business opportunities in order to create value
for its shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

The Group's turnover for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
approximately RMB7,973 million (2016: approximately RMB6,841
million). The increase in turnover was mainly attributable to the
increase in the wholesale of LNG which reported a turnover of
approximately RMB1,610 million during the year ended 31 March
2017 (2016: approximately RMB986 million).

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2017 was approximately
RMB62 million (2016: approximately RMB106 million). The decrease
in gross profit was primarily due to the decrease in the cost of the
alternative source of energy and the dis-alignment on the price
adjustment between the natural gas suppliers and the market
users have caused significant challenges to the group in costs
transferring, placing pressure on the Group's product selling price.
Accordingly, the Group’s gross profit margin for the year ended
31 March 2017 decreased from approximately 2% (year ended 31
March 2016) to approximately 1%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group

Financial Review
AREB 2 EIRE 515w Mo AT 7% Ol g

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 March 2017 was approximately
RMB12 million (2016: approximately RMB47 million). The decrease
in other income is mainly due to the absence of the non-recurring
interest income from third party and a related party.

Impairment Loss on Goodwill

As the domestic LNG market recovery was slower than expected,
part of the goodwill from sales of LNG segment was impaired.
During the year, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
approximately RMB23 million (2016: nil) on goodwill.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2017 amounted to approximately RMB73 million (2016:
approximately RMB102 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 28.5% as compared to the previous year. The
decrease was due to (1) the suspension of LNG production plant
resulted from change of gas sources from upstream supplier in last
year which part of the fixed production costs (i.e. labour salaries
and deprecation etc.) were treated as administrative expenses in
the suspension period and (2) the Group has adopted effective cost
control measurements.

Finance Costs

The Group incurred finance costs of approximately RMB43 million
during the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: approximately RMB48
million), representing a decrease of approximately 12.2%. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the non-recurring
discount interest expense from the debt assignment incurred in last
year.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group is subjected to taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC due to
its business operations in these jurisdictions. For the year ended
31 March 2017, income tax expenses of the Group approximately
RMB14 million (2016: approximately RMB14 million). The changes
were mainly come from the decrease in the current tax expenses
due to the drop of profit in oil and gas transactions and the
increase in the deferred tax expenses as a result of not recognising
a substantial amount of tax losses carried forward in deferred tax
assets.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 March 2017, the Group maintained bank balances and
cash of approximately RMB463 million (2016: approximately RMB61
million).

The net current liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2017
were approximately RMB143 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB28 million compared with the last year
(2016: approximately RMB115 million). The current ratio was
approximately 0.92 (2016: approximately 0.94).

Notwithstanding the net current liabilities of the Group at 31 March
2017, the management are confident that the Group would have
adequate funds to meet its obligation, as and when they fall due,
having regard to the following:

(i)  the available long-term loan facilities of RMB344,640,000
and RMB28,936,000 with maturity up to September 2017 and
September 2019, respectively; and

(i) the Group expects to generate positive operating cash flows.

The Group will further improve its financial position in order to
improve liquidity and cash flows by implementing a number of
measures, including but not limited to, raising further medium to
long term banking facilities and rolling over short term banking
facilities to medium term when they fall due.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB481 million which are due within one year and approximately
RMB24 million which are repayable after one year. The gearing
ratio, which is debt-to-equity ratio, of the Group was approximately
0.4 as at 31 March 2017 compared to approximately 0.28 as at 31
March 2016.
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On 13 February 2017, the Company entered into a Subscription
Agreement (“Subscription Agreement |”) with the Subscriber for
331,000,000 Subscription Shares, which were allotted and issued by
the Company at the Subscription price of HK$0.68 per Subscription
Share at the completion. The closing price of the Share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 13 February 2017, being the date of the
Subscription Agreement, was HK$0.76. The Directors considered
that the entering into of the Subscription to raise additional funds
to strengthen the financial position and broaden the capital base of
the Company.

The completion of the Subscription Agreement | took place
on 24 February 2017. After the completion of the Subscription,
331,000,000 ordinary shares were allotted and issued with nominal
value of HK$0.1 per share. The gross proceeds of approximately
HK$225,080,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB199,365,000,
at the exchange rate of HK$1 = RMBO0.88575) received from the
Subscription and the net proceeds, after deducting relevant
expenses, was approximately HK$224,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB199,000,000, at the exchange rate of HK$1 =
RMBO0.88575) and the net price per Subscription Share issued is
about HK$0.679. The net proceeds was used to settle the trade
payment.

On 21 March 2017, the Company entered into another Subscription
Agreement (“Subscription Agreement I1”) with the Subscriber
for 503,703,704 Subscription Shares, which were allotted and
issued by the Company at the Subscription price of HK$0.675
per Subscription Share at the completion. The closing price of
the Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 21 March 2017,
being the date of the Subscription Agreement, was HK$0.75. The
Directors considered that the entering into of the Subscription
to raise additional funds to strengthen the financial position and
broaden the capital base of the Company.

10 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JT=MAFIERR AR A A
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The completion of the Subscription Agreement Il took place on
30 March 2017. After the completion of the Subscription, the
aggregate of 503,703,704 ordinary shares were allotted and issued
with nominal value of HK$0.1 per share. The gross proceeds of
approximately HK$340,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB301,485,000, at the exchange rate of HK$1 = RMB0.88672)
received from the Subscription and the net proceeds, after
deducting relevant expenses, was approximately HK$332,400,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB294,700,000, at the exchange rate
of HK$1 = RMBO0.88672) and the net price per Subscription Share
issued is about HK$0.66. Out of the net proceeds, approximately
RMB293,300,000 was used to settle the loan of a subsidiary and
the remaining balance was used by the Company to pay for the
administrative expenses (i.e. legal and professional fees, rent,
salaries etc.).

Upon completion of the abovementioned two subscriptions
agreements, the issued share capital of the Company is enlarged
from 5,683,635,248 shares to 6,518,338,952 shares.

Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment

Capital expenditure for purchase of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB18 million (2016: approximately
RMB21 million) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had pledged assets in an
aggregate amount of approximately RMB717 million (2016:
approximately RMB872 million) to banks for banking facilities.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no material capital

commitments.
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, the Group issued financial guarantee to
the banks in respect of bank loans obtained by associates of
RMB135,000,000 (2016: RMB60,000,000), representing the amount
that could be required to be paid if the guarantee was called upon
in entirety by the bank.

Treasury Policy

The Group mainly operates in China with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB and US Dollar. The exposure of
exchange fluctuation in respect of RMB and US Dollar could affect
the Group’s performance and asset value. However, there are no
significant differences of the carrying amount of the monetary
assets and liabilities which are denominated in US Dollar so the
Group has not experienced any material difficulties and liquidity
problems resulting from currency exchange fluctuations. The
Group still monitors the overall currency exposures.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had about 470 employees (2016:
about 550). The remuneration packages are generally structured
with reference to market conditions and individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages of the Group’s employees are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and
other relevant factors.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed
to maintain good corporate governance standard and procedures
to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure in
order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2017, save for the deviations discussed below. The Board
will continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a proper
and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, the directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of Six Directors,
including three executive Directors, and three independent non-
executive Directors (the “INEDs"). The Directors are, collective
and individually, aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders.
One of the INEDs possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section of “Biographical
Details of Directors” on pages 32 to 35.
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The Board members during the year ended 31 March 2017 and as at
the date up to this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jianging (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Zhou Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year
at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board
meetings that are required for significant and important issues, and
for statutory purposes. Appropriate and sufficient information is
provided to the Board members in a timely manner to keep them
abreast of the Group's latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year, the Board held ten meetings and the attendance

of the directors at the Board Meetings for the year ended 31 March
2017 is set out as below:

Name of Directors

BE_T—+F=A=+—HIEFEKREZE
AHERRZEFTERER

BITEE
TRBRE(ZERTHAAEE)
RESLLE
At

BUHBITEE
RGRAEL
BZEE
AR LE

BREAMREESEHAREAERNMEIT L
HWEEE R  EFSBFELHTH
REZEPE  RONEBFBRT- R -EF8
KRERESERRESEAZERTRZER - UE
WETBRAKRBEZ&MER  EMADRS
BITERE -

FRG-EFECETTRER MRBE=
E—tHF-A=T-BLEEEREFHFE
e ZEREIIMT

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

EERR HERSE FERB
Executive Directors BiTESE
Mr. Wang Jianqing (Chairman and Chief FREBRE(EERITEAES)

Executive Officer) 9/10
Mr. Bao Jun RE LA 9/10
Mr. Zhou Jian BfRELE 10/10
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFRITESE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGRAEL 10/10
Mr. Wong Chi Keung BZREA 10/10
Mr. Tom Xie HEEEE 10/10
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Board minutes are recorded in appropriate details and draft
minutes are circulated to all directors and committee members
for comments before being approved by the Board at the next
immediate meeting. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the directors.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and oversees the Group's business, strategic decisions and
financial performance. The Board directly, and indirectly through its
committees, leads and provides direction to management by laying
down strategies and overseeing their implementation, monitors the
Group's operational and financial performance, and ensures that
sound internal control and risk management systems are in place.
The Board delegates to the management team the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business including the preparation
of annual and interim reports, and for implementation of internal
control, risk management system, business strategies and plans
developed by the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other except those
disclosed in the director biographical details.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the
Company, notwithstanding that every Director shall be retired at
least once every three years.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code stipulates that all directors
appointed to fill causal vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
On the other hand, paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 of the Listing
Rules provides that such directors are to hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election at that meeting. As mentioned in the
annual report for FY2006, the Board decided to leave the existing
Bye-laws unchanged given the inconsistencies in the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wang is the chairman of the Company since 27 January 2011
and was appointed the chief executive officer ("CEQ") of the
Company on 15 September 2011. He is responsible for managing
the Board and the business of the Group.

Under the Code, the roles of chairman and CEO should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The Board considers that Mr. Wang possesses the essential
leadership skills to manage the Board and extensive knowledge in
the business of the Group. The present structure is more suitable
to the Company because it can promote the efficient formulation
and implementation of the Company’s strategies. Through the
supervision of the Board and the audit committee, balance of
power and authority can be ensured and there is no imminent need
to change the arrangement.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Group. Every director is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board

remains informed and relevant.

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, relevant materials including regulatory updates have been
provided to the directors for their reference and study.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees with clearly-
defined written terms of reference. The independent view and
recommendations of the three committees ensure proper control
of the Group and the continual achievement of the high standard
corporate governance practices.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee (the
“RC") comprises three Independent non-executive directors,
namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom
Xie.

The duties of the RC as per the terms of reference were as follows:

1. to formulate remuneration policy for approval by the Board,
which shall take into consideration factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, employment conditions, and
responsibilities, and individual performance of the directors
and senior management. Performance shall be measured
against corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; and implement the remuneration policy
laid down by the Board, if any;

2. to consult the chairman and/or chief executive about their
remuneration proposals for other executive directors. The
remuneration committee should have access to independent
professional advice if necessary;

3. without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing:

(@) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration;

(b) review and approve the management’s remuneration
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;
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determine with delegated responsibility the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management of the Group, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment;

make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

determine the criteria for assessing employee’s
performance, which should reflect the Company's
business goals, objectives and targets;

to ensure that no director or any of his associate is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

engage external professional advisors to assist and/or
advise the Committee on issues if necessary;

do any such things to enable the Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the
Board;
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() conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board
or contained in the constitution of the Company or
imposed by legislation;

(m) exercise such other powers, authorities and discretion,
and perform such other duties, of the directors in
relation to the remuneration as the Board may from time
to time delegate to it, have regard to the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules; and

(n) advise shareholders on how to vote with respect to any
service contracts of directors that require shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules as amended from time
to time.

The RC has every right to access to professional advice relating to
remuneration proposal if considered necessary. The RC has begun
to review the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management.

The RC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 March 2017
and the attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of Members

() HAEESTHETIALTM
422 12 7T B L 387 1 B
EREAER - 5 RRA

(m) REBEEFETHZEERETH
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Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

BRMR HEXRS EHERH
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGRAE L 11
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BZRAE(EE) 7
Mr. Tom Xie AL A 11
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Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee (the “AC")
comprises three Independent non-executive directors, namely,
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The principal duties of the AC include:

(a)

to be responsible for making recommendations to the board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

to review with the group’s management and external auditor,
the adequacy of the group’s policies and procedures
regarding internal controls (including financial, operational
and compliance controls), risk management system and
any statement by the directors to be included in the annual
accounts prior to endorsement by the board;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Committee should
understand the factors considered by the external auditors
in determining their audit scope, and should discuss with
the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commencement. The
external auditors’ fees is to be negotiated by management,
and presented to the Committee for review and approval
annually;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm
or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The Committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed,;
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to review the Company's financial information and to monitor
the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them. In
reviewing these reports before submission to the Board, the
Committee should focus particularly on:

(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting and auditing standards;
and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

with regard to (e) above:

(i) members of the Committee should liaise with the Board
and senior management, and the Committee must meet,
at least twice a year, with the external auditor; and

(i)  the Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in the reports and accounts, it should give due

consideration to any matters that have been raised by

the Company's staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or

auditor;

to review the Company's financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee, or
by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems;
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to discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with the management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective systems, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management's response to these
findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management's response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for the fair and independent
investigation of such matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;
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to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’'s relation with the external auditor, and to
evaluate the cooperation received by the external auditors,
including their access to all requested records, data and
information; obtain the comments of management regarding
the responsiveness of the external auditors to the Group's
needs; inquire of the external auditors as to whether there
have been any disagreements with management which if not
satisfactorily resolved would result in the issue of a qualified
report on the group’s financial statements;

to obtain from the external auditors annually information
about policies and processes for maintaining independence
and monitoring compliance with relevant requirements,
including provision of non-audit services and requirements
regarding rotation of audit partners and staff;

to discuss with the external auditors any recommendations
arising from the audit (if necessary in the absence of
management);

to meet with the auditor, at least once a year, in the absence
of management to discuss matters relating to its audit fees,
any issue arising from the audit and any other matters the
auditor may wish to raise;

to the engagement of the external auditors to perform non-
audit services is in general prohibited except for tax-related
services. If a compelling reason exists to engage the external
auditors due to their unique expertise in a particular area, the
prior approval of the Committee is required;

to review and consider the findings of internal investigations
and management'’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements of
laws, rules and regulations;

to agree with the Board the Company’s policy relating to
the hiring of employees or former employees of the external
auditors and monitor the applications of such policy. The
Committee shall consider whether as a result of such hiring
there has been any impairment of the auditor’'s judgment or
independence in respect of an audit;
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(v)  to report to the Board on the above matters; and
(w) to consider other topics, as defined by the Board.

The AC is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity and
seek any information it requires within its term of reference. It
is also authorized to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice and to invite the attendance of outsiders with
relevant experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Reporting to the Board of Directors of the Company, the AC is
dedicated to review and supervise the Group's financial reporting
process and internal controls. The financial results for the year
ended 31 March 2017 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The AC has reviewed the risk management report on monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

The AC conducts at least two regular meetings a year in addition
to other meetings that are required for significant and important
issues, and for statutory purposes.

The AC has held two meetings during the year ended 31 March

2017 and the attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of Members

(v) MEEFERLAEE: R
W) ZEEHMHEFSHEIZE -

ERRECREFTERENAREREANS

SEMAEBLSKEREZEMEN - BX
ZEENERERII NG ERAHEMBILE
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.
=
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ﬁ%?fiﬁ&i%‘é%ﬁ%%&ifﬁ BEVRBRITZ

Hthgmid BERZECEFTELRITMNX
Bl -

HE_ZT—+F=ZA=+—HIEE  B%
ZESERTMNAEE  KEHEBRIOT

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

BRMER HERSEHERH
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGRAE L 2/2
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BZRAE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Tom Xie AL S A 2/2

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the Company'’s annual report for the year ended 31 March

2017 and the interim report for the six months ended 30 September
2016.
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Nomination Committee
As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee (the “NC")
comprises Mr. Wang Jianging, the chairman and the executive

director of the Company and two Independent non-executive

directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi Keung.

The duties of the NC as per the terms of reference were as follows:

(a)

to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
Sufficient biographical details of nominated candidates shall
be provided to the Board and/or shareholders to enable them
to make an informed decision;

to make recommendations to the Board the appointment or
re-appointment of directors of the Company and succession
planning for directors of the Company in particular the
chairman and the chief executive of the Company;

to identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of
directors for the Board's approval,

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company;

to do any such things to enable the Committee to discharge
its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board; and

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation
that may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or
contained in the constitution of the Company or imposed by
legislation.
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The NC has held one meeting during the year ended 31 March 2017
and the attendance of the members is as follows:

Name of Members

—E—tF=A=1t—HILFE  &H
ZEECBTREE  KEHEBRET :

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

BRMR HERS E@ERH
Mr. Wang Jianging FERBLEAE 1/1
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2ERAELT 11
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) BREE(EE) 1”1

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and ensure
that the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standard. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Group.

The Statement of external auditors of the Company, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statement of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 52 to 59.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 March 2017, fees payable to the auditor of
the Group for audit services was approximately RMB1,800,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as a reporting mechanism to
facilitate the Group to manage it risks across business operations.

The Group has established the risk management organizational
framework, which comprises of the Board, the audit committee
and the risk management group. The Board will assess and
determine the nature and extent of risks acceptable for the Group
in fulfilling its strategic goals, and will ensure the establishment
and maintenance of appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems by the Group. The Board will also
supervise the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems by the management.

The Group has also formulated and adopted the enterprise risk
management system, which provides effective policy procedures
to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The risk
management group will, at least once in a year, identify risk
exposures that may affect the realization of the Group's business
target, assess and rank the risks through a standard mechanism,
formulate a risk mitigation plan and identify staff held accountable
for the risks, enabling the Group to make rational allocation of
resources to cope with the major risks.

Furthermore, the Group has established internal audit function, so
as to help the Board and the audit committee to constantly monitor
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
identify defects in the design and operation of the internal control
and put forward proper remedies. Serious defects identified in the
internal control will be reported to the audit committee and the
Board promptly, and efforts will be made to formulate the remedial
plan and identify the staff to be held accountable. In addition,
timely follow-up will be carried out to ensure improvement of the
situation.
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Risk management report and internal audit report will, at least
on a yearly basis, be submitted to the audit committee for review
before submission to the Board for final approval. The Board
has conducted annual review on the effectiveness of our risk
management and internal control systems, including changes in the
nature and extent of significant risks since the last annual review,
the ability of the Group to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment, the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and the internal control system,
the work of internal audit function, the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring results to the Board, significant
control failings or weaknesses that have been identified during
the period and the relevant impacts, as well as the effectiveness
of the Group's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance, and determined the effectiveness of the existing risk
management and internal control systems.

The above-mentioned risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage but not to eliminate the risk of
failing to fulfill the business target. Therefore, these systems can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that there will
not be material misstatement or loss.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION
OF INSIDE INFORMATION

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the inside information
should be announced as soon as reasonably practicable after
such information comes to our attention, unless it falls within
the Securities and Futures Ordinance safe harbours. The Group
will ensure the confidentiality of such information before full
disclosure of such information to the public. Where the Group
considers it impossible to maintain confidentiality as required, or
the information may have been divulged, the Group will disclose
such information to the public in no time. However, the Group will
make sure that the information contained in the announcement is
not false or misleading as to a material fact, or is false or misleading
due to the omission of a material fact, enabling the public to obtain
inside information in an equal, timely and effective manner.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to F.1.2 of the Code, the appointment of the company
secretary should be dealt with by a physical board meeting rather
than a written resolution. The appointment of the current company
secretary was dealt with by a written resolution in September 2013.
The Board considers that, prior to the execution of the written
resolution to appoint the current company secretary, all Directors
were individually consulted on the matter without any dissenting
opinion and there was no need to approve the matter by a physical
board meeting instead of a written resolution.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate with
shareholders and investors, the board and the Company maintain
an on-going dialogue with shareholders mainly through the
Company’s financial reports, annual general meeting and other
general meetings.

The Company also maintains a website at http://www.yuanhenggas.com
as one of communication channel for the shareholders and
investors. For any enquiries, the shareholders, the investors, media
or the public may contact the Company directly, contact details of
which are posted on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company held an annual

general meeting. The attendance of the directors at the meetings
was as follows:

Name of Directors
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Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

EEpR HERE EERB
Executive Directors BITESR

Mr. Wang Jianging FREBEAE 11
Mr. Bao Jun IRE LA 11
Mr. Zhou Jian AfdkaE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUAERITES

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGHE L+ 171
Mr. Wong Chi Keung mZREE 11
Mr. Tom Xie A EE 11
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 March 2017, there had been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting by shareholders
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so
in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, either any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting
to which the requisition relates; or not less than one hundred (100)
shareholders may make requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to shareholders of the company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting;

(b)  to circulate to members entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand (1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
that meeting.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquires to the board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquires to the Company by post or
delivery to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 4102, 41/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jianging

Mr. Wang, aged 48, has extensive experience and business
network in the energy and trading industry. Mr. Wang obtained
his Bachelor's degree in Industrial Management Engineering
from Zhenjiang Shipbuilding College (now known as the Jiangsu
University of Science and Technology).

Mr. Wang was the chairman and executive director of FU JI Food
and Catering Services Holdings Limited (now known as Fresh
Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Ltd.) (stock Code: 1175)
(retired on 24 September 2014). He is also the general manager of
Guangzhou Circle Energy Company Ltd.

Mr. Wang is a cousin of Mr. Bao Jun, an executive director of the
Company.

Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Bao, aged 49, has over 20 years of experience in project
investment, construction and operation management. He obtained
his bachelor degree in Engineering from Jiangnan University
(formerly known as Wuxi Polytechnic University) in 1989. Mr. Bao
joined Guangdong Light Industry Design Institute as an engineer
from 1989 to 2000 and was responsible for the research and
development of the manufacturing technique of various biological-
engineering and chemical engineering projects such as the design
and management of amino acids production plant and brewery.

Mr. Bao is a cousin of Mr. Wang Jianging, the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Jian

Mr. Zhou, age 44, holds a Master’s degree in Economics from the
Central University of Finance and Economics, the People’s Republic
of China.

Mr. Zhou was responsible for the global fuel oil trading during his
service in China National United Oil Corporation as well as the fuel
oil spot and future markets managing of its branches in Asia and
America. He was also a senior manager of Titan Petrochemicals
Group Limited (stock code: 1192), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, in the oil storage and distribution divisions. Mr. Zhou
has over 15 years of extensive working experience in energy field
with broad business network, and is familiar with global energy
environment and market.
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He also has been in the position of independent non-executive
director for Tack Fiori International Group Limited (now known
as Life Healthcare Group Limited) (Stock Code: 928) since 12
September 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, aged 49, has extensive knowledge and
experience in risk management of financial instruments, treasury
business and financial derivative products. He has served DBS
Bank for eight years and was Senior Vice President in the Treasury
and Markets Division upon his departure from the bank on 22 May
2009. Dr. Leung started his career in the finance industry in 1996
with Citibank as quantitative analyst in the Equity Derivatives Asia
Department. He had served a few other financial institutes before
joining DBS Bank Ltd as a financial product specialist as well and
had held various roles in business development, trading and risk
management.

Dr. Leung, a native Hong Kong citizen with Chinese nationality,
holds a Bachelor (First Class Honours) degree of Science (1990)
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of
Science in Mathematics (1993) and a Doctor degree of Philosophy
in Mathematics (1996) from the California Institute of Technology,
and a Master degree of Science in Investment Management (1999)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.

He also has been in the position of independent non-executive
director for FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings Limited
(now known as Fresh Express Delivery Holdings Group Co., Ltd.)
(Stock Code: 1175) since 8 July 2013.
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Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Wong, aged 62, holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia.
He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and CPA Australia; an associate member of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is
also a Responsible Officer for asset management and advising on
securities for CASDAQ International Capital Market (HK) Company
Limited, under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was as an executive director, the deputy general
manager, group financial controller and company secretary of
Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou
Investment Company Limited) (stock code: 123), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, for over ten years. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Asia Orient Holdings
Limited (stock code: 214), Asia Standard International Group
Limited (stock code: 129), Century City International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 355), China Shanshui Cement Group Limited
(stock code: 691), China Ting Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
3398), Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited (stock code: 1039),
Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited (stock code: 3308), Heng
Xin China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8046), Nickel Resources
International Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as
China Nickel Resources Holdings Company Limited) (stock code:
2889), Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code: 617), Regal Hotels
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 78), TPV Technology
Limited (stock code: 903) and Zhuguang Holdings Group Company
Limited (Stock Code: 1176), and, all of these companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange.

34  Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTZARIER AR A7)

Annual Report 2017 F 3§

BZEEE

BEA 25 BARMNMBERAKER

HTRHERRTIBMN RABTBEHEQ

g RERFARETHAE KRMNEHED

RBZEAERER  RERFMERITHAER
&

EENBEERFLBEGRHTZFME
E A E ' BCASDAQ International Capital
Market (HK) Company Limitedi2 ft & E &
B UHBHFREEER

WIRTBEHERMDER AR (FIREBER
BEAERAR) (BRGNS 123) 2HITES -
BlgIE EEMBBEER AR WEBAT
F AR ET - FIRABEZEER
BRAT(RDREE - 214) - ZEEREEHR
RAT(RRMDREE : 129) ~ 4758 T BB 45 A%
BRAF(BRMmREE : 355) ~ AEIILZKKESE
EAR AT (MDA - 691)  FESEE IR
ARAR (MR : 3398)  EHFmEH
BRAT(RMOHAREE - 1039) SEREER
BRAB (BRI : 3308) « B A BIER
BRA T (MR - 8046) - 2 & RE R
AR AT (AIfEHEEERIERER AT
(BRDAER : 2889) ~ BFMRIZERBR AR (X
BRI 617) BRBAEEBZERERA A
(BBHR5E - 78) ~ WEBHEAR A G (BRHK
5% 0 903) MERAIEREBABR AR (RMHR
SR 1176) 2B IEBITES - Ll ARIHE
Bt P BT e



Biographical Details of Directors
EXERHS

Mr. Wong has over 37 years of experience in finance, accounting
and management. Mr. Wong was also an independent non-
executive director of PacMOS Technologies Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1010) (retired on 1 July 2014) and ENM Holdings
Limited (stock code: 128) (retired on 10 June 2017), both of these
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong was also a Responsible Officer for Greater China
Capital Limited (resigned on 16 April 2016), responsible for asset
management, advising on securities and advising on corporate
finance, under the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Mr. Tom Xie
Mr. Xie, aged 66, has years of management experience with a Hong
Kong listed company.

Mr. Xie obtained a Master of Science degree and a Master's
Graduation Certificate in Gemology, both from China University of

Geosciences (Beijing) in 2012.

Mr. Xie is currently an independent non-executive director of
U-Right International Holdings Limited (stock code: 627).

Mr. Xie is also the Permanent Honorary Chairman of the
Confederacy of Hong Kong Shanwei Clansmen Limited.

HEERYE @ kERFAES =T+
T8 - FEENMBNERHEIEBRERA
A (RGHE - 1010) (R=ZE—lWE LA —AR
BRE)RTZEZERERAR (ORI 128)
(RZZ—+FXA+BEBT) 2B IEHTT
EE MRABHEEBIAET -

BERENRBERAESLHERI T 2EME
BEABRZZF—A"EWA+TRAHEI) B
REERAARARRHEEEER  YHES
REERMERTER -

s
BEE o6 BESEEBLTAAEE
a5 -

HMEER T ——_FREPEBEKRE(L
FEASEBETENRETEES -
AR AHBEBZERERAR(RHBR
8% 627) 2B IFMITES o

BHEENATEEDIRASGREAES
BEE -

35



36

Directors’ Report
EEEWmEE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are set out in
note 50 and note 22 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion
on the Group's future business development and an analysis
of the Group's performance during the year using key financial
performance indicators are provided in the “Chairman Statement”
on pages 2 to 4 and the “Management Discussion and Analysis
of the Group Financial Review” on pages 5 to 12 of this Annual
Report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The capital risk management and financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are shown in notes 45 and 46
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 179 to 194 of this
Annual Report.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 March 2017, as far as the Company is
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the business and operations of the Group.

Environmental protection

The Group understands that its business has an impact on
the environment and recognises the importance of sound
environmental management practices and sustainable business
operations. It is committed to comply with the relevant
environmental standards and policies related to its business
operations as set by the government in People’s Republic of China
("PRC") and Hong Kong.

For more details regarding the Company’s environmental policies
and practices, please refer to the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” which will be published within three months
after the publication of this Annual report on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Relationships with employees, customers and suppliers

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
and business associates are key stakeholders to the Group's
success. It strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
engaging its employees, providing quality products and services
to its customers, collaborating with business partners (including
suppliers and contractors) to deliver quality products and services
and supporting our community.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules
will be published within three months after the publication of this
Annual report on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 60.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully paid
share capital are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

There is no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 March 2017.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity- linked agreements were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at end of the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wang Jianging
Mr. Bao Jun

Mr. Zhou Jian

Independent non-executive directors:
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

In accordance with Article (87) of the Company’s Bye-laws, one
third of directors for the time being shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3. 13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
securities (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which (a) are required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (b) otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange (pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers).

EERERTHRASREMG - 4
MiRMRRESCESRRE

RZFB—tHF=A=1+—8  ARA&E=F
K EBITHRABRARRSAEMREEE (A
B m MG R (85 REEERD ) EXV
BRATER T 2 mE ) 2 Bty - MR R ERERE
o BB () BRERE 5 R E G015 3521%
ZHRE RSN Z G Pt 2 B Az s
KRR B(b)BRE EMEITAERETE
FRHZBETURITHEARNR A LB
ZHERBORBIAT ©

Number of Shares held

Fri5Rin 8B
Long Short Percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest position position total holding
EElR P 131 we RE BFERaSL

(Note 2)

(MtEE2)
Wang Jianging Interest in controlled 3,328,188,787 - 51.06%

corporation (Note 1)

TRE XL EER (EE1)
Bao Jun Beneficial interest 45,000,000 - 0.69%
RE EnEn
Note: MsE -
1. Mr. Wang Jianging was deemed interested in, and duplicated, the 1. THREAEHRBAREEBNBEERANEEER

2,691,684,436 shares which Champion Ever Limited was interested, the
586,486,402 shares which Galaxy King Limited was interested, and the
50,017,949 shares which Champion Golden Limited was interested. Champion
Golden Limited is held as to 50% by Mr. Wang Jianqging. Both Champion Ever
Limited and Galaxy King Limited are wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

2. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2017, i.e. 6,518,338,952 shares of the Company.

22,691,684,436 % B2 17 - Galaxy King Limited #
A % 2 586,486,402% % 1 &2 Champion Golden
Limited ¥ 5 # %5 2 50,017,949 & % 15 7 ¥ 5 #&
% ° Champion Golden Limited 3 T 5 X £ 4E
50% &z o WA BR AR KGalaxy King Limitedg
BERBEELEHEA -

2. BREDLIIREBEARFR_E—+F=A=+—
A2 BETRA(BIARR6,518,338,952/% A% 15 )
AESBE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the directors,
chief executives of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which (a) are required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 & 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO); or
(b) are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) are required, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

As at 31 March 2017, none of the directors of the Company had
any interests in respect of options to subscribe for the shares of
the Company under the Company’s share option scheme approved
and adopted on 23 August 2002.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ rights to
acquire shares”, none of the directors, their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for shares of the
Company, or had exercised any such right during the year, and at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Other than as set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements and as disclosed under the heading “Related party
transactions and other disclosures”, no transactions, arrangement
or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries had entered into
the following transactions which constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

1. On 4 September 2014, EM T = R B R 2 7 (Guangzhou
Yuanheng Gas Co., Limited*) (“Yuanheng Gas"), a wholly-
owned foreign enterprise established under the laws of
the PRC and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a supply agreement ("GG Supply
Agreement”) with Guizhou Gas (Group) Co., Ltd* (EMBEE
(EE)BRETAT]) ("Guizhou Gas”) for supply of LNG to
Guizhou Gas, its subsidiaries and its associates (collectively
“GG Group"). Guizhou Gas holds 50% interests in &1 = fE
IR EBRAF (Guizhou Huaheng Energy Investments Co.,
Ltd*) ("Huaheng Energy”), a company established under the
laws of the PRC and indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company where the Company indirectly holds the
remaining 50% interests in it. Therefore, Guizhou Gas is a
connected person of the Company.

The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap for
the GG Supply Agreement:

MEXHRSHEMERS

RAFE  ARBAREMBARGRISZIAT
X5 WERZRE EMRRIE14AZEAAR

RAIZFHEMRERS -

R-ZE-—OFALAMA - BNTFHRR
BERAB(ITFMR] - —FERETE
SRR ZINEEERE - WRAAT
ZEEEENBAR)RRAEMMR (&
B)BAEREERR(TEMRR]) -~ EHHt
BRBIREBEAL (G [ENMRR
SE D HERERAREENRRET L
—in G E (T EMNRR R -
BEMRRFHAEEMNEZERIRERRA
A([EFIR] - —ERIEHBEDEEK
Y ZRABWRARRZEEEEMBER
A MARBEESEEE T50%2 1%
@ )50% s o it - EMRRAERR
AlZBEAL -

TR EMMRRHEBZEZFR L
PRABER -

Annual cap

FELR
RMB

AR

From 1 October 2014 to year ended 31 March 2015 R-ZZE—NF+A-BEEE
—E—FRE=A=+—HIIFEE 230,000,000

From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RIE-—AFMA—BE

—E-RF=ZA=+—H 457,000,000
From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RZE—R"FMNA—HZE

—E—+F=HA=+—H 466,000,000
The total sale of natural gas products to members of BE_ET-—REFNA-BE-_ZT—LF
the GG Group from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 was ZA=+—H mEMRERSEEEK
RMB114,794,000. BRRHERAREMMNBHERS

AE®114,794,0007T °
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On 4 September 2014, Yuanheng Gas entered into a purchase
agreement (“GG Purchase Agreement”) with Guizhou Gas for
purchase of natural gas products (including both LNG and
natural gas) by members of the Group from members of the
GG Group.

The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap for
the GG Purchase Agreement:

R-Z-—MFEAATAE - TFHRRAA
SEXEQRRAEMNRREBRKER
ABERARER(BRBRIERARK
RAR) BEMRRIT L — B E HH
(TEMRRBERZE]) -

TRENENRRBERHEZFE LR
HEE

Annual cap

FELR
RMB
AR#
From 1 October 2014 to year ended 31 March 2015 RZZE—NFE+H—BEEZE

—E-RF=A=+—RHIFE 151,000,000

From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RZZE-—hFMHA—BE
—E-XF=ZA=1+—H 518,000,000

From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RIZE-—RFMA—HBE
—E—+F=A=+—H 567,000,000

The total purchase of natural gas products from members
of the GG Group from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 was
RMB132,235,000.

On 4 September 2014, Yuanheng Gas entered into a supply
agreement ("JR Supply Agreement”) with Jiangsu Runfu New
Energy Development Co., Ltd.* (T#EEMLRERERA
A ("JS Runfu”) for supply of LNG to JS Runfu. JS Runfu is
owned as to 70% by Mr. Wang Jian, a brother of Mr. Wang
Jianging (“Mr. Wang"), an executive Director, the chairman,
chief executive officer and controlling shareholder of the
Company and a cousin of Mr. Bao Jun, an executive Director
and therefore Mr. Wang Jian and JS Runfu are associates of
Mr. Wang and are connected persons of the Company.
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The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap for TREWIKEEHERZFE LR

the JR Supply Agreement:

#EER

Annual cap

FELR
RMB
AR®
From 1 October 2014 to year ended 31 March 2015 RZE—NFE+H—BEEZE
—hE=A=+—HILFE 27,000,000
From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RZE—RFWMA—H=E
—E-XF=ZHA=+—8H 54,000,000
From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RIZE-—RFMNA—HBE
—+HF=A=+—H 55,000,000
JS Runfu has no longer been a connected party since 3 April IHREER-—FT HFHA=AETH

2015.

REEAL -

o N

On 4 September 2014, Huaheng Energy entered into an 4. RZF-MFALANA  EFERE

agreement ("GG Construction Agreement”) with E M EIR REMERRRERERARAR(E
RIEFFERAR DA (Guizhou Hongyuan Gas Construction MR ] - —HEREHEERKY
and Development Co., Ltd*) ("GG Constructor”), a company ZRE ABEMRRZHMBRR) A
established under the laws of the PRC and a subsidiary $$§5ﬁ27¥‘@%3&ﬁ%‘;3§%&@5§
of Guizhou Gas, for retaining GG Constructor to be the REEETREIMNRRERT L — 0
contractor of Huaheng Energy for construction of the pipeline BR(TEMNRRZRAER]) -

networks and the supporting facilities.

The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap for TREJNEMNRRERERZFE LR

the GG Construction Agreement:

#EE

Annual cap

From 1 October 2014 to year ended 31 March 2015

From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

FEER
RMB
AR
R-ZF—MF+A—-—BEHE
—hE=ZA=+—HIFE 6,700,000
R-Z-—RFMA—HZE
—E-RE=ZA=1+—H 6,500,000
R-ZZB-R"FOA—HZE
—+tF=A=+—H 4,800,000
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There were no construction works carried out by GG R_ZT— /\ﬁlﬂlﬁ BHE-_T—+F=
Constructor for Huaheng Energy from 1 April 2016 to 31 A=+—8  SMNRRERILFEEITE
March 2017. £ //\Zi_:ii“lﬁ °

5. On 4 September 2014, Huaheng Energy entered into an 5. RZZE—NWFENANH  EFEFRERMRE
agreement ("GG Procurement Agreement”) with E /AR TEBREREETIEBEMEEEMNM
SEMEE S AR AT (Guizhou Gas Group Material Trading REEMEBSERAR([EMNRRY
Co., Ltd*), ("GG Material”), a company established under the Bl —BEREBEHRBEEK L ZA A
laws of the PRC and a subsidiary of Guizhou Gas, for purchase WAEMNRR 2B AF)EL—1H W
of materials for construction of the pipeline networks. FE(EMNMARERZE] -

The table below sets out the aggregate of the annual cap for TERHENEMNRRIRERRZZFE LR
the GG Procurement Agreement: HEE

Annual cap

FELR
RMB
AR%
From 1 October 2014 to year ended 31 March 2015 RZZE—NFETA-—BEHZE
—ARAF=ZA=+—RHILFE 8,600,000
From 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 RZZE-—hFHA—BZE
—E-RF=ZA=t—H 10,500,000
From 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 RZZE-—XRFMNA—HBE
—+tF=RA=+—H 5,900,000
There were no construction materials purchased from GG RZE—RFONA—HBE_T—tF=H
Material from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. =+—H  TEREMNRRYEBERES
mE o
The independent non-executive directors have reviewed and B EHMITERD B U ER RSB
confirmed that the above continued connected transactions RN 2 DB ERER S
have been entered into by the Group:
(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of its business; (i) TR —MEAEBEKBRES
(i)  on normal commercial terms or better and which are no iy DETEBERAEESLTHRER
less favorable to the Group than those available to or NEZAZ—BEEGER(EESE
from independent third parties; and RFROETL - &
(ili)y in accordance with the relevant agreements governing (i) TDHRBHERZHZET MR
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the SERFBRATEE  UHFEARR
interests of the Company and the shareholders of the AR E R 2 B o

Company as a whole.

A4 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTZARIER AR A7)
Annual Report 2017 F 3§



Directors’ Report

SHEE

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions set out above
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing the following findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

()  the transactions have received the approval of the Board
of Directors of the Company;

(i)  the transactions were in all material respects in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve provision of good or services by the
Group;

(i) the transactions have been entered into in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv) the transactions have not exceeded the cap disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 4 September
2014.

There are no other connected transactions which are
required to be disclosed in this report in accordance with
the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
with respect to continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Company and the Group during the year ended 31
March 2017.

ARRERBEZBEIZRE L SETED
NEBM 2 BB ERE FHER 5300057
[FFEZAENBEVBENNEZTT
Bl W2RELSGHAMAGHNZE
B AE7405% [ BN AR LR RIPT
FEMEX N ZBEN K] - st bt
AEBEFEBEIZIEH RS o ZEED
ERE EMARAE14A ERHEREE
Rt BEhHAERKBERERHZ
NIREE R -

() BREXFOLEARRESZSHE:

(i) WZREXZFRAAEEREHD
mk R - AIAERZEME
EATERAKENTEERRE
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AVAREY

/
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 March 2017, the following shareholders (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company whose interests and
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company are disclosed in the section headed "Directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above) had interests in the shares, and
underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

ERRREEMALZRDERHE
MiRMERRREERE

RZBE—tHF=ZA=1—8  BARARE
EHRBEROIE3MGFE 2B LML
- THRRMEXEERTETHRASR
KB - R RE#EE 2 BEFRR | —
BAMEERNAR B RN RABERN T HE
BERABRNEFTAARBERITHRARR
SMRA R B R ABRAR D A R

Number of Shares held
FrisBRin & B

Long Short Percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest position position total holding

BEREE e 5 EaHY HEe RE BRRESL

(Note 8)

(Ffi3E8)

Champion Ever Limited Beneficial interest (Note 1) 2,691,684,436 - 41.29%
TEAR AT Bt (M)

Galaxy King Limited Beneficial interest (Note 2) 586,486,402 - 9.00%
Galaxy King Limited BExmtks(ME2)

Cheng Xu Family interest (Note 3) 3,328,188,787 - 51.06%
TELTS Rk (MIFE3)

China Construction Security interest (Note 4) 3,192,950,838 - 48.98%

Bank Corporation

PR IRITRID BRRAF] IR (M E4)

Central Huijin Investment Ltd  Security interest (Note 4) 3,192,950,838 - 48.98%
FRIESKEBRETEAA i (H5FE4)

Eight International Group Beneficial interest (Note 5) 331,000,000 = 5.08%

Limited
EREEEEAR AR

Annual Report 2017 F 3
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Number of Shares held

RSB
Long Short Percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest position position total holding
BREE e S #EakE e 9 BFEERESL
(Note 8)
(Ffi3E8)
Zong Aolei Interest in controlled 331,000,000 - 5.08%
corporation (Note 5)
Zong Aolei RyEEEE R (HF5)
Fundfleet Investment Beneficial interest (Note 6) 503,703,704 = 7.73%
Limited Partnership
Fundfleet Investment g (FIsE6)
Limited Partnership
New Sunshine Global Limited Interest in controlled 503,703,704 - 7.73%
(as Limited Partner) corporation (Note 6)
New Sunshine Global Limited S AEREZ (H5F6)
(FEBBEREEAN)
Zhu Yachen Interest in controlled 503,703,704 = 7.73%
corporation (Note 6)
Zhu Yachen =i EE R (M)
Wealth Bloom Investment Interest in controlled 503,703,704 - 7.73%
Limited (as General Partner) corporation (Note 6)
FEHEREGR AR 2L E R (FFE6)
(EB—MERBAN)
SFUND International Interest in controlled 503,703,704 = 7.73%
Investment Fund corporation (Note 6)
Management Limited
ENMEC BB RERERES 2L E R (KFE6)
ERHR AR
BMERREREREES Interest in controlled 503,703,704 = 7.73%
EEAERAA corporation (Note 6)
BINERKERERERES Sk E g (KsEs)
EEERAA
BEME e malEis &R Interest in controlled 503,703,704 = 7.73%

BRAR]
FEMNBHR 2 B AR IR B 12
BRRA

corporation (Note 6)
R EE R (MEke)
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Number of Shares held

Frisiin® B
Long Short Percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest position position total holding
BREE R S8 HRKtR i ne BEESLL
(Note 8)
(KtsE8)
BEMNEXREESER Interest in controlled 503,703,704 - 7.73%
BRAFA corporation (Note 6)
EMNEXRREESER Xy EE s (Histe)
BRAF]
Qian Peng Family interest (Note 7) 503,703,704 - 7.73%
Qian Peng Kkt (357)
BisE

Champion Ever Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.
Galaxy King Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Jianging.

Ms. Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Wang Jianging and is deemed interested in, and
duplicated, the interests Mr. Wang is interested in.

Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, CCB International Overseas
Limited is wholly owned by CCB International (Holdings) Limited, which in turn
is wholly owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly
owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly
owned by China Construction Bank Corporation, which in turn is held as to
57.31% by Central Huijin Investment Ltd. All above interests duplicate each

other.

Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, Eight International Group
Limited is wholly owned by Zong Aolei. All above interests duplicate each

other.

A48 Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTZARIER AR A7)
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6. Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, Fundfleet Investment Limited
Partnership is held as to 55% by New Sunshine Global Limited (as Limited
Partner) and 45% by Wealth Bloom Investment Limited (as General Partner).
New Sunshine Global Limited is wholly owned by Zhu Yachen. Wealth
Bloom Investment Limited (as General Partner) is wholly owned by SFUND
International Investment Fund Management Limited, which in turn is wholly
owned by BMERKEREREESEE AR AT, which in turn is held as to
95% by EMEHE & RAIFT IR AR AR AR, which in turn is wholly owned by &
MEEREELEEHFMRAF. New Sunshine Global Limited is wholly owned by
Zhu Yachen. All above interests duplicate each other.

7. Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed, Qian Peng is the spouse of Zhu
Yachen and is deemed interested in, and duplicated, the interests Zhu Yachen
is interested in.

8. The percentage holding is calculated on the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2017, i.e. 6,518,338,952 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no person had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Bye-law 166(1) of the Company’s bye-laws, the directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of any willful negligence, willful
default, fraud or dishonesty which may attached to any of them.
Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force and was in
force throughout the financial year.

The Company has purchased the directors’ liability insurance to
provide protection against claims arising from the lawful discharge
of duties by the Directors.

6. RECIREMNERSEER  Fundfleet Investment
Limited Partnership 8 New Sunshine Global
Limited({ERBREBA) REEKREBR QA
(FER—MERBAN) DRI B 55% Kk45% 2 © New
Sunshine Global Limited 1 Zhu Yachen & & #
B REREARAAMER—RERA)BEM
ECEBRREREESERARARZERE M
BENMNESHEFREREZSEEERAAHEME
BREREREECEREAERARDNZERES - EM
ERREREREESEEBRATHEMNE RS
BEIFIEEIERAER A RIFHS%ER + mEME}
REepal R EERBERATHEMNEXRER
SERHRARIZEHES - New Sunshine Global
LimitedfiZhu Yachen2&# A « LillfiB#=Y
HEES -

7. BIEBIREMNEEHER  Qian Peng & Zhu
YachenZ B8 R R 3 R B BMZhu YacheniE A
w2z R ERER

8. BRESLREBEARAR-_E—tF=A=+—
Az BETIRA (AR R AF6,518,338,952/% i 1)
FTEBE -

BREXPHBEEEN R_FT—tF=H
=t—B SECAALRARFZEROK
MERER D T A RIBE 77 R B E RIS 3365
MERCE SRR

R HEXKROFEAR
EhEs

ER - ARARREEAHBLFLEBE -
HE R IEE AR RUER EDESH -

JU T AR R 16 3L
RBEARB 2 2BHAANE166(1)F - EFT
WARRZEERGNESREE - pLEIHE
ERALBHATEEAKBARELRTRSE
ZBBRAELERTS  REXREHKE
BT H BT SR B A T mJ BEEE £ PR A AR
AMKA B BRBERRX AR
FER R ZEARE - L BETSHT
EHEFMALTAREKREAZ ERHERZ -
BEK BFFHTHESE - AHEAME
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to
the Group's major customers and suppliers are as follows:

FEERRMER
AEBEERSBHBEREFABERR
REEZEAHMT -

Sales HES %
- The largest customer NI 28
- Five largest customers aggregated —AREFER 78
Purchases ey § %
— The largest suppliers —RAHER 48
— Five largest suppliers aggregated —hRHEFEEF 78

None of the directors, their associate or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the Group'’s five largest
suppliers or customers during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “"Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company,
the directors of the Company have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company's issued shares as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited JTZARIER AR A7)
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
WANG JIANQING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 30 June 2017

& BED
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

YUAN HENG GAS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BT HREERARATZZEBRR
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RERZFZMK .z HRAE])

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuan
Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 202,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

REEXER

ARBELFASATNERHE S - HEZ
AHRHEEMBHREAREZNFE - AT
EREBGRAMBRRLAMTEAE R KR
BHEER MASRMEEFEREBERE

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our "o

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
ARFERER

Impairment of goodwill and property, plant and
equipment

HERWFE  BER R E

We identified the impairment of goodwill and property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter due to
significant judgement and estimation involved in the
preparation of the discounted cash flows used in the
impairment assessment.

RTEEERYE  BEMREREBR R —EBREZ
ZE RARRERENEAABRRRERERIREX
HEf R 5T o

The Group, with property, plant and equipment
amounting to RMB788,127,000 as at 31 March 2017,
incurred recurring losses such that an indication exist
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
The management was therefore required to carry
out an impairment assessment of the property, plant
and equipment at the end of the reporting period by
comparing their recoverable amounts with carrying
amounts.

EEER-_ZT—+tF=ZRA=1T—HHY%E BERRESR
AR¥788,127,0007T - EEAKEEBERABETRETR
ZEBECHRRERE - AtEEEANKRSHREY
¥ - BB RREETRERE - BERGHE DS 5E R
IREE#EITLLE ©

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FITHERNNEERNRFEXER

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
goodwill and property, plant and equipment included:
AITEEBERYE  BELRBRENZFEE

e Understanding the relevant key controls over
the assessment of impairment of goodwill and
property, plant and equipment;

o THRAMBEERME  BEIREREMNEIEER
syl

e Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

o FHEEIMIMEBEEEIHIEE - O REEIE

e Obtaining the discounted cash flow analysis of the
relevant asset or cash generating unit prepared by
the management and checking its mathematical
accuracy;

s EREHEERHENEEEEIRSELEMARIRI
EMED UL H B EEREN

e Engaging our internal valuation experts to assess
the appropriateness of the discount rate used and
perform sensitivity analyses on discount rate;

o ZREAMGEZRRTEAAMBRENEE L ETR
WRGREE DT
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Key audit matter
AREZER

Moreover, the Group has goodwill arising from
acquisition of subsidiaries in previous years amounted to
RMB56,740,000 before impairment as at 31 March 2017.
The management is required to test for impairment
of goodwill on an annual basis by comparing the
recoverable amount and the carrying amount of the
cash generating unit to which such goodwill has been
allocated. During the year ended 31 March 2017, an
impairment loss on goodwill of RMB22,670,000 was
recognised as set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

N RZFE—+tF=RA=+—H ERENRBEFE
WEHBARIMEELN BEREHER/ARES6,740,000
T BEREERSFETHEBREANR  NERKBED K
FABMEZRSEABMUNAINE S B ERAEETL
B o HSRE M BRRMF20ME BHE_T—+F=
A=t+—HIFEEHABHEREBHEARK22,670,000

JC °

In determining the recoverable amount, the Group
engaged an independent external valuer to assist
in assessing the value in use of the asset or cash
generating unit by discounting the estimated future
cash flows expected to arise from the asset or cash
generating unit to the present value. Significant
judgment and assumptions were required in the
process such as the use of discount rates, growth rates,
estimated average purchase price of natural gas and
average selling price of liquefied natural gas during the
forecast period as set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

REEAKREOESER X BEEEZE-—2BIIHMGEE
B BB EEEXRESELBNUNEREE  HERK
BEIReELBUEHELNGEARAKRRECREBURE
BE - NGV ERRMISHE  ZBREFTEEHE
ARHAEG R RE - ERBFRAPARAZERE - ERE - XA
AT FEOBEERRIERARTFIHESE -

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited TS ARIER AR A A
Annual Report 2017 F 3§

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNTEERRERER

Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions adopted in the discounted cash flow
analysis, including growth rates, estimated average
purchase price of natural gas and average selling
price of liquefied natural gas with reference to
the historical sales volume, revenue, cost of sales,
operating expenses and future strategic plans of
the Group;

FHEREBE ERES T AT RABRRRNSIENL
BREL2E EEEBEHE  Wa  HEKE K
R X MARRERBEETBIR S HAIERE - RARMET
FHEEBRBRIERARTIIERE

Testing data inputs in the discounted cash
flow analysis, on a sample basis, against source
documents;

K REIR I R E DT o BRA H A BRI BLR S HETT
HECLCS

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
discounted cash flow analysis made by
management by comparing the historical analysis
made against the actual performance of the
Group; and

BRLBAEEESNE SEEERXRE  FHE
EEBEMEMBRRESRENTERM K

Assessing whether the disclosures of impairment
testing in the consolidated financial statements are
sufficient and appropriate.

AR A M RREENRENARS TR &
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Key audit matter
AREZER

Measurement of the fair value of the unlisted
investment held by an acquired subsidiary

FEFTIRIEN B 2 B AT 5 9F Ll iR B Z 22 F (6

We identified the measurement of the fair value of the
unlisted investment held by a subsidiary acquired during
the year as a key audit matter due to its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and the
judgement and estimations involved in measuring the
fair value of such investment.
RITHEAREEWIE —FR B RARIMRE L TRENDTF
B 2R A—HEREXEE  RAREHGESUHR
REBEXBAEZREZ NTES R A KA -

As detailed in notes 5, 26 and 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has acquired a
subsidiary during the year which principally engages in
investment holding. The subsidiary held an available-
for-sale investment of RMB202,200,000 at the date of
acquisition and at the end of the reporting period, which
is unlisted and not publicly traded.

WANARE ISR EES « 26 RAFIEFI - BEEERK
FERB-REIELEREZROMB AR - RKEBH
ERBREMR  ZMBARFAILTRIERRAEE A
&% & AR ¥202,200,0007T °

The management engaged an independent external
valuer in determining the fair value of the investment at
the date of acquisition and at the end of the reporting
period. Judgement and estimations are required in
choosing the appropriate valuation methodology,
adopting the relevant assumptions and use of market
comparable investments and discount rate as set out in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
ERENETRENKBEPENBERRZATFERE
2 — R BN EERD o BANERE BT IS IRAR M SE5 P& -
BEEEMERE  RAMEBERRARKBTISAE LR
BB RBEIR RS AIEH FIE R k5t -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FTHERNTEERRERER

Our procedures in relation to the measurement of
the fair value of the unlisted investment held by an
acquired subsidiary included:
ATBEBFERRBNB AR MR IELMREZATE
R

e Understanding the relevant key controls over the
management review of the valuation of unlisted

investment;
e THEHEEESEMIEFLMEEMENHEBRE
s

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external valuer;

o FHMHEBIUAHMBEERAREE - BN REEIE

e Engaging our internal valuation experts to review
the valuation of the unlisted investment held by the
subsidiary performed by the independent external
valuer and evaluate the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology and the reasonableness
of key assumptions and estimations applied in the
valuation; and

s ZRENIMEEZEREBFBLINIMEEMETOMBR
BIFTFEFE E IR E 2 (A EA RFHEEETENEE 1
MiEEMAEERRMMAETHEENE &

e Testing the data inputs used in the valuation, on a
sample basis, against source documents.

o BEERANBABUIRER T ETHELLY -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBEN R E S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBEN R E S

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZBEN R E S

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Stephen C. L. Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
reBaMHEM 2B ATRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017

HE_ZT—+F=A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—Z2—tF —T-RF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
LiEs3 AR®TIT AREFTT
Turnover B 6 7,972,843 6,841,169
Operating costs RN 7 (7,911,030) (6,735,514)
Gross profit EF 61,813 105,655
Other income HAp g A 9 12,099 46,579
Other gains and losses H bk N E5 18 10 (7,027) (2,115)
Impairment loss on goodwill GRS EREY St 20 (22,670) -
Distribution and selling expenses DI RIEERY (10,994) (10,357)
Administrative expenses TEFAY (72,666) (101,621)
Share of results of associates il daNCIES (9,359) 4,224
Finance costs Bh& A A M (42,524) (48,451)
Loss before tax PR ATEE (91,328) (6,086)
Income tax expense FiS i FxX 12 (13,919) (13,935)
Loss for the year FEEE 13 (105,247) (20,021)
Other comprehensive income FREM P ERA
for the year
Item that may be reclassified HEeETHER
subsequently to profit or loss: PBahyEE -
Exchange differences arising on RipEmEL ZIER =5
translation 505 417
Total comprehensive expense FRNEEASEE
for the year (104,742) (19,604)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: 4 RfE(G (E518 )& F :
Owners of the Company RAFHEE A (84,591) 9,676
Non-controlling interests FEIERRRERS (20,656) (29,697)
(105,247) (20,021)
Total comprehensive (expense) income [E(EZHE (FAX ) WA 4258 -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARHEEAA (84,086) 10,093
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR MRS (20,656) (29,697)
(104,742) (19,604)
(Loss) earnings per share (RMB cents) &t (EE)BAF(ARES) 17
— Basic — &R (1.48) 0.18
— Diluted —#58 (1.48) 0.18

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited TS ARIER AR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE MU RER

At 31 March 2017
W=B—tF=A=1—8

2017 2016
—Z2—tF —E—REF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
BtEE AR#®TR ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB K& 18 788,127 837,086
Prepaid lease payments BRHEER 19 37,309 38,671
Goodwill (RS 20 34,070 56,740
Intangible asset mEEE 21 8,166 8,559
Interests in associates REEE R 2 22 136,562 111,421
Long-term receivables R HApE W E 23 37,325 60,806
Deposit paid for acquisition of HWE R E AR M2
an associate Be 24 190,748 =
Deferred tax assets RIETHIEEE 25 576 4,818
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 26 202,200 =
Deposits for property, plant and BMEMEEBETYE  BER
equipment under finance lease Bl Pk - 847
1,435,083 1,118,948
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Inventories e 27 26,784 26,181
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A R BR TR 28 821,839 1,554,880
Prepaid lease payments BRHEER 19 1,362 1,362
Long-term receivables due within R—FRE B8R
one year FEUZRIB 23 59,181 27,006
Amounts due from non-controlling JE BT BB R B FE PR AR A 2
equity owners of subsidiaries wHa AFIE 29 12,810 2,904
Amount due from a related party U — R BB ALTIE 30 1,878 480
Pledged bank deposits SHEARITIER 31 186,099 289,915
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIR S 31 463,222 61,129
1,573,175 1,963,857
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE MBI RE

At 31 March 2017
RZE—tF=H=+—H

2017 2016
—EZ—tF —E—REF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5T AR®TR ARETT
CURRENT LIABILITIES nRBAR
Trade and other payables B 5 ME M AR 32 1,149,753 1,871,261
Amounts due to associates AN NGIE ] 33 12,949 3,203
Amount due to a non-controlling equity FEfT—EMIEB R 7 —& IEIEAR
owner of a subsidiary R ARIE 34 - 10,000
Tax payable FEfTHE I 56,915 62,349
Bank and other borrowings due MITRHEMEES -
within one year —E R FI|HA 35 415,708 131,282
Convertible bond A] AR (& 5 38 65,200 =
Embedded derivatives BARSTETE 39 15,547 =
Obligations under finance leases & FH A AR HE 36 - 1,115
1,716,072 2,079,210
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENAERE (142,897) (115,353)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BRERADAR
LIABILITIES 1,292,186 1,003,595
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MBI ERE

At 31 March 2017
RZE—+F=A=+—H

2017 2016
22—t —E—RF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
B AR®TT ARET T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BE & R & i
Share capital AR 7 37 549,014 475,031
Reserves EE 634,988 298,237
Equity attributable to owners of RAEIHEEB NELE
the Company 1,184,002 773,268
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR = 79,645 105,332
TOTAL EQUITY BaBHE 1,263,647 878,600
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEmBAR
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE 25 4,539 =
Bank and other borrowings due R—F B EHRRT R
after one year EMEE 35 24,000 56,000
Convertible bond AR ES 38 - 56,054
Embedded derivatives BMARITET R 39 — 12,941
28,539 124,995
1,292,186 1,003,595

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 202 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wang Jianqing
EX
DIRECTOR
5=

FOOBEF 2028 2R BREREN 2
—t+tENA=THEEESHELKET
BB TNIESERERES

Bao Jun

GE
DIRECTOR

B=

=

=
|

|
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARNEDRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Retained
earnings Non-
Share Share Translation (accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve losses) Total interests Total
REERF
ks RHER BARE (RHER) gt FHBRER it
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARBfT  ARETR ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARBTR  ARETR
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-14MA-A 4328 3872431 2202 1862 572,680 141,802 114,482
Profit loss) for the year REEETI(BR) = = = 9,676 9476 (29.697) (20,021)
Other total comprehensive income ~ AEEE {2

for the year LN - - 47 - 47 - 47
Total comprehensive income FERRERA

(expense) for the year (Fx)48 - - 7 9476 0093 @60 (19604
Issue of shares ARG 31,709 158,746 = = 190,495 = 190,495
Acquisition of additional interestin ~ JlE—FHBLT)

2 subsidiary BvER - - - - - (3.445) (3443)
Dividend RE - - - - - (3,328) (3328)
Transfer to statutory suplus reserve  BEZETEREE - = = (2959) = = =
Transfer to designated safety fund ~ ERZERZ2E4 - - - (8.968) - - -
At31 March 2016 3 S

=f=1=H 45031 4031177 2619 (7,389 773,268 105,332 878,600
Loss for the year KEEEE - - = (84591 (@4591)  (06%)  (105,247)
Other total comprehensive income ~ AEEE {2 ARAEE

for the year - - 505 - 505 - 505
Total comprehensive income FERRAMA(RR)

(expense) for the year ek = = 505 (84.591) (84,086) (20,656) (104742
Issue of shares (see note 37 tothe BTk

consolidated financial statements)  (B4RABIHERRMHI) 73,983 426,867 - - 500,850 - 500,850
Transaction costs attributableto ST ERRZZBHA

issue of new ordinary shares = (6,030 = - 6,030) = (6,030)
Dividend k& = = = - - (5,031) (5,031)
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve  EBZERRHFERE - - - (1,147) - - -
Transfer to designated safety fund ~ BEZZER2ES - - - (7,389 - - -
At 31 March 2017 RZF-tf

ZA=t-A 549,014 4,452,014 3124 (100,513) 1,184,002 79,645 1,263,647

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited TS ARIER AR A A

Annual Report 2017 F3;



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARNEDRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

Notes:

Other reserve of the Group as at 1 April 2015 mainly represents (i) the financial
impact of adopting merger accounting for the acquisition of Union Honor
Limited (“UHL") and its subsidiaries and (ii) a debit arising from the deemed
distribution to shareholder which represents the cash consideration of the
acquisition of UHL of HK$70,000,000 (equivalent to RMB55,595,000) paid to the
vendor during the year ended 31 March 2014 (see note 2 to the consolidated

financial statements).

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and the Articles of Association of certain subsidiaries of
the Company, they are required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, by way
of appropriations from their respective statutory net profit (based on their
PRC statutory financial statements) but before dividend distributions. They are
required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory reserves.
The appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve may cease if the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the registered capital of the
relevant companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up prior
year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of
a capitalisation issue. However, when converting the statutory surplus reserve
into capital, the remaining balance of such reserve must not be less than 25% of

the registered capital of the relevant companies.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulation, certain subsidiaries are required
to transfer a certain percentage based on a progressive rate on revenue
generated from manufacturing and transportation of gas or other dangerous
chemical into a designated fund. The fund will be used for installation and
repair and maintenance of safety facilities. The movement during the year
represents the difference between the amounts provided based on the relevant

PRC regulation and the amount utilised during the year.

REBRZZ—RAFMNA— Az EiEERORK
BB ER AR ([BEE ) REWB R R MEMAE G
AU RE  R)ABRIEARR 2 DIRES
ZEBERBE-_T-—ME-A=1+t—HLFEK
BE R E X T E S 2B £ {870,000,0007 7T
(A& M AR%55,595,0007T ) (R47 46 B H & Mt
5$2) e

RIFFEEARAME ([ ) BEDER FOEHR A
RAABRETWBARZAHERAR - WERE
BENREEANEEFEN(REBERENFEE
EM B E) LR E D KA Z F BUAE R IE
HBHE - MEARRBIRE TN 10%E B =5 E
o BEERRRERATECERBARTEME LR
50%5 ] {2 1E MDA E B A REER o AERRFEE
AARNEREARFEEBIR(NE) - WRAIAE A3
TZAAERRESEBG - A - BRETE R
RBERELR  FRFEATFSLINMEBARENE
R225% °

RIBABEFEER - ETHBARARRERES
ARRSEMERCEREENRERSE—FER
DUBREHERES - ZELHARZEREZE
ERBETMEE - FARBIERIBERETRERR
BeeHRFAEHAEHEIER -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A DI E
,Z“/T\/Sfﬁiumii'%

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBF T
Operating activities HBERY
Loss before tax PRt AT B 1R (91,328) (6,086)
Adjustments for: SETHIREELRE
Depreciation of property, ME - BERREZTE
plant and equipment 66,978 65,334
Amortisation of intangible asset I EE 2B 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid BNEER EH
lease payments 1,362 1,362
Net loss on fair value change of BRARTETAATEES
embedded derivatives B8 1,775 2,363
Exchange difference [EH =% 4,499 1,085
Finance costs BB A 42,524 48,451
Interest income FSBA (6,243) (45,248)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE K& E W
plant and equipment (5) (70)
Share of results of associates [EIEEEE AR 2 ¥R 9,359 (4,224)
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBE 2 W (339) =
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREER 22,670 -
Operating cash flows before BEACEPRI KER NS
movements in working capital 51,645 63,360
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEEEMm) R (603) 19,587
Decrease (increase) in trade and 2 5 R E A MR TR A (32 00)
other receivables 733,041 (537,103)
(Increase) decrease in amounts M A B A T FIB (G R D
due from related parties (1,398) 2,443
Increase in amounts due from JE BT /B8 12 B FEFE AR A 2
non-controlling equity owners of B AR
subsidiaries (9,906) (1,690)
(Decrease) increase in trade and B REMEMERRCRD) M
other payables (727,306) 743,959
Increase (decrease) in amounts FETEE SN R FIBEE 1 OF 4
due to associates 9,746 (19,107)
Cash generated from operations RESIRE 55,219 271,449
Income tax paid BERETER (12,117) (20,352)
Net cash from operating activities REEBMG R FHE 43,102 251,097
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEBRLRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—Z—t%F —E—REF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B st AER®TR AREFT
Investing activities BERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEY% - R MR E (15,255) (10,665)
Receipt of long-term receivables U B R B e U 2R 23 27,006 -
Proceeds from redemption of BRIE R E ZFEHRIE
short-term investments = 19,500
Capital injection to an associate il UNCbE - = (40,000)
Acquisition of an associate Y is— R = A A 22 (34,500) (20,000)
Net cash inflow on acquisition WE—RHRBRAZ
of a subsidiary HemAFH 41 3 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HEWE - BERREL
and equipment FTiS5kI8 20 1,053
Repayment from a non-controlling equity B /A Al — % JFHRRkiERS
owner of subsidiaries BEANZER = 250
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R EERBRITER 807,593 1,057,766
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABBIFERITER (703,777) (964,276)
Interest received [REENRSE 2,730 38,683
Net cash from investing activities REFHMEELFE 83,820 82,311
Financing activities MERE
Dividend paid to a non-controlling equity X F— M B2 8 — & IEER
owner of a subsidiary RREEAZRE (5,031) (3,328)
Repayment to a shareholder fa] % 3R 38 3K = (6,109)
Repayments of obligations EEmEMNEE
under finance leases (268) (2,315)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT 2 FRE R 500,850 190,495
Expenses on issue of shares BTG 2 X (6,030) -
Repayments of bank and other borrowings BT R EMEE (520,047) (1,000,544)
New bank borrowings raised BEGMLRITEE 352,680 487,931
Proceeds from issue of convertible bond BITAMHRRES 2 FTS30A - 63,492
Acquisition of additional interest in Uit B8 — Rl BT B8 A R BB SME RS
a subsidiary = (3,445)
(Repayment) advance from non-controlling — i B A B JEHER A A
equity owner of a subsidiary ZEF)BR (10,000) 10,000
Interest paid EAFLE (37,488) (34,792)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities BEEBG(E)ZIREFE 274,666 (298,611)
Net increase in cash and ReRB&FERAZ
cash equivalents BmieE 401,588 34,797
Cash and cash equivalents at REMZHERES
the beginning of the year EERE 61,129 26,064
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EFEE#EZFE 505 268
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZBAERAE
the end of the year #E®EA 463,222 61,129
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE ISR M GE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL

Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the "Group”)
is a public limited company incorporated in Bermuda and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section in the annual report.

Upon the completion of the mandatory unconditional cash
offer on 3 January 2011, Frontier Global Group Limited
("Frontier Global”) which is ultimately controlled by Mr. Wang
Jianging ("Mr. Wang"), acquired 71.5% of the aggregate
issued share capital of the Company, and Frontier Global
and Champion Golden Limited then became the immediate
holding company and ultimate holding company of the
Company, respectively. Both Frontier Global and Champion
Golden Limited are limited liability companies incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the "BVI").

Upon the completion of the acquisition of a subsidiary and
the issue of new shares on 16 May 2014 as set out in note
2 (the "Acquisition”), the immediate holding company and
ultimate holding company of the Company were changed
to Champion Ever Limited, which a limited liability company
incorporated in the BVI and is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang.

The Group is principally engaged in the entering into
oil and gas sales and purchase contracts with a number
of counterparties. Starting from 16 May 2014, upon the
completion of the Acquisition, the Group is also engaged
in the production and sale of liquefied natural gas ("LNG"),
operating vehicle gas refueling station, sales of piped
gas, LNG transportation and construction of gas pipeline
infrastructure.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition, the functional
currency of the Company has changed from Hong Kong
dollars ("HKD") to Renminbi (“RMB") as the primary
economic environment of the Company changed to a PRC
business environment. Following the change of functional
currency of the Company, the Company changed the
presentation currency of its consolidated financial statements
from HKD to RMB. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that this could simplify the financial reporting process
and it could provide users with more comparable information
with other companies in similar industries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iRA MBS ERRMEE

Ny =

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Acquisition of Union Honor Limited (“UHL"”) and the
adoption of merger accounting

On 28 October 2013, the Group entered into an agreement
with Ying Hui Limited (“Vendor”) and Vendor's shareholders,
pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed to acquire
and the Vendor conditionally agreed to dispose of the sales
shares, representing the entire issued share of UHL, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Vendor, at the total consideration
of HK$2,861,775,000. Both the Vendor and UHL are limited
liability companies incorporated in the BVI.

Mr. Wang, the ultimate shareholder of the Company, has
equity interest of 62.89% of the Vendor and has control over
the Vendor. On 17 March 2014, the Group entered into a
supplemental agreement (“Supplemental SPA") with the
Vendor and the Vendor’'s shareholders pursuant to which
the consideration of the Acquisition has been revised to
approximately HK$3,068,246,000.

According to the Supplemental SPA, the total consideration
of the Acquisition is satisfied by (i) cash consideration
of HK$70,000,000 (equivalent to RMB55,595,000); (ii)
HK$2,998,246,000 by procuring the Company to issue and
allot to the Vendor’s shareholders of a total 4,283,209,057
shares (“Consideration Shares”) at an issue price of HK$0.70
per Consideration Share. During the year ended 31 March
2014, cash consideration of HK$70,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB55,595,000) has been paid, which is deemed to be a
distribution to shareholders.

The Acquisition was approved by the shareholders of the
Company in a special general meeting held on 8 May 2014
and was completed on 16 May 2014.

Mr. Wang has obtained the control of the Company since
the completion of mandatory unconditional cash offer on 3
January 2011 as stated in note 1, and on 11 January 2013,
Mr. Wang obtained the control of the Vendor and UHL.
As such, the Group and UHL are under common control of
Mr. Wang. The Acquisition of UHL has been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements using the principle
of merger accounting, taking into consideration of the
requirements under Accounting Guideline 5 “"Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations”, as if they
had been combined from the date when the combining
entities first came under control of Mr. Wang.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 2.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Going concerns

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful considerations
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that as
at 31 March 2017, its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately RMB142,897,000. Taking into account
of (i) the internally generated funds, and (ii) the available long-
term loan facilities of RMB344,640,000 and RMB28,936,000
with maturity up to September 2017 and September 2019,
respectively, pursuant to the relevant facilities documents, the
directors of the Company are confident that the Group will be
able to meet its financial obligations when they fall due in the
foreseeable future and be able to operate on a going concern
basis.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time in current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods
and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 - 2014 Cycle
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Disclosure Initiative for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity need not provide
a specific disclosure required by an HKFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material, and give
guidance on the bases of aggregating and disaggregating
information. However, the amendments reiterate that an
entity should consider providing additional disclosures
when compliance with the specific requirements in HKFRS
is insufficient to enable users of financial statements to
understand the impact of particular transactions, events and
conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the
amendments provide examples of systematic ordering or
grouping of the notes.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively.
Hence, the grouping and ordering of certain notes has been
revised to give prominence to the areas of the Group's
activities that management considers to be most relevant
to an understanding of the Group’s financial performance
and financial position. Specifically, information to capital
risk management and financial instruments was reordered
to Notes 45 and 46, respectively. Other than the above
presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 has not resulted in any impact on the financial
performance or financial position of the Group in these
consolidated financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 and amendments Revenue from Contracts with

to HKFRS 15 Customers and the related
Amendments
HKFRS 16 Leases?
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration'

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses*
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of
investment property’
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 cycle®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1
January 2018, as appropriate
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,

general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for

financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) Eiﬁﬂiﬁiﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂﬁ‘)ﬁﬁﬂIE(g)

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities o WIETERATESAEZEREZS®
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS MABZFAEMS @ BEMBR
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value EREBNEIRRTE » FRIENE At
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes F2EBAERZEEEERRE
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other o E @ESNIENERZ
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the @R DR RafEzEE
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other FElaEmEyermeEATE
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an SEMNEHHINEMZEKAZR
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair e AemaBEzEERKRMmE
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in ﬁﬁ’“l—?ﬁﬁ@]ﬁ{éTﬁiﬁ
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently HEBEm  BREBBEHELE
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire 395 - BEREATEFAERR
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial ReedBaEecadrnFEEEY
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss REHRERFEY -

was presented in profit or loss.

o In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS s HEMBECHMEMS  HAS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed @ HERFI9HIE NRDELEE
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. EEREAGERR EEVK
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to WMEEREIRBR EHRBHREES
account for expected credit losses and changes in those BEAGFE - BHEEBEEN
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect REEBNSRE B BRGTERE
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other EEBERZEHRHAEEBECE
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have FAR  URMEERR S VB
occurred before credit losses are recognised. EEEE] LA}KZ fE) T 0 B

ABREEEESFHIBREE
Eﬂ‘ﬁ 2

Application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material BREREEMBHRELEDFIW A6

impact on the classification and measurement of the Group's HAKECRHEECHBERGABEAE

financial assets. The Group's available-for-sale investments, AEE . REEHEERE (BIER

including those currently stated at fair value, will either be R AT EVERE ) B R A FER A

measured as fair value through profit or loss or be designated TEI SRR T AREBEME TR AK

as FVTOCI (subject to fulfillment of the designation criteria). NEEFER(BRBIETEEE)S o )t

In addition, the expected credit loss model may result in Sh o FBEAEEEBBEX R ER AL E

early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in MIRE R AAEZ EREENRESL

relation to the Group's financial assets measured at amortised ZIEEEEIRATGHERE - A B

cost. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable EEETHSREMNASIEGETEAT %

estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group undertakes HAERE T 2 R EIW AT ©

a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1:
e Step 2:

Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3:
e Step 4:

Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies

a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are

required by HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing and operating
cash flows respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB3,808,000 as disclosed
in Note 44. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon
the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application
of new requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
financial effect until the directors of the Company complete a
detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Specially, the amendments require the following changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from
obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses;
(iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv)
changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The application of the amendments will result in
additional disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
specifically reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided
on application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative (Continued)
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 7 will have a material
effect on the Group’s financial performance and positions
and/or the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate the application
of the other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the Group's
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

HE_ZT—+tF=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution
of the relevant equity component and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEBHBE(E)

(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combinations involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination occurs
as if they had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the
time of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period
or when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
cash generating units). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associates or joint ventures.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate or joint
venture, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described
below.

Revenue from sales of goods, which includes wholesale of
LNG, vehicle gas refuelling stations and sales of piped gas, is
recognised when goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from provision of services, which includes
construction of gas pipeline infrastructure and LNG
transportation, is recognised when services are provided.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Turnover of the Group includes the gross proceeds from oil
and gas sales contracts, revenue from sales of goods and

revenue from provision of services.

Operating costs includes the gross amounts of oil and
gas purchase contracts, cost of sales of goods and cost of
provision of services.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purpose other than construction
in progress are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEEEBE (M)
(Continued)
Leasing (Continued) FA# (&)
The Group as lessee (Continued) FREESEABAE)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held and operating leases, are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income or a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of
interest is treated as a government grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fair value of
the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

4.

FEETHRGE)

BB ()

BB T AEBERNEGHE < B
(BRI BN Al TSR AR S ) HIfE
BAFCHEERN RSP RER - L8
5 UBRAKERE - ERKEE
MEVEE BT BRI AR B IR &R
BN R ER SEERALAEBE
ENREERD - AREREEN A
FHAEREGABARERTER
o

BB ARED ELE M H e EER
B4 T ARS B AN B 7% 1k (1
REBEAKA)  REBERHKSER
FIENHARAE RSP RHER -

BIER TSN R B2 BT &R Z M
ERRTMEEE - s8R0 WHAER
HERFERITMIGHNERFEZERAF
BREZH -

HE
FrS 55 5 2 o35 3R I JE S A TR SR E R
T 2 #%8 o

EMRE

S5 B 1 4.8 T 35 4F P 8 SR R ot
H o ERREN RS AERRABRE
Mg N3RPT 2 R I LA 5 ) P
Bl - bt 5 AR EL M 4 [ 2 BB SR B AT
FANBLZ AR B B A RAEBA
BRHMBZIBR - A%EE 2 EHABIE
B3R B B SRS B IS £ B IR TS
ZBAREHE -

93



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iRA M ERR MR

2Ny =

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-
for-sale ("AFS") financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, long-
term receivables, amounts due from non-controlling equity
owners of subsidiaries, amount due from a related party,
pledged bank deposits, bank balance and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is

considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivable, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 30 to 90 days, and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at

the original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivable, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance account.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reverse
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Financial liabilities of amortised asset

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amount due to associates, amount due to a non-controlling
equity owner of a subsidiary, and bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities of amortised asset (Continued)
Convertible bonds

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible loan notes is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The derivative component is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
loan notes are allocated to the debt and derivative
components in proportion to their relative fair values.
Transaction costs relating to the derivative component are
charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs
relating to the debt component are included in the carrying
amount of the debt portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible loan notes using the effective interest
method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivatives contract are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities of amortised asset (Continued)
Embedded derivatives (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

() the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets above).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
above).

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contributions retirement benefit
plans are recognised as expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion
in the cost of an asset.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the management of the Group
has made various estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on past experience, expectation and
other information that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill and property, plant and equipment
The carrying value of goodwill and property, plant and
equipment at 31 March 2017 amounted to RMB34,070,000 and
RMB788,127,000 (2016: RMB56,740,000 and RMB837,086,000),
respectively. The Group is required to carry out an impairment
assessment of goodwill and property, plant and equipment
at the end of the reporting period by comparing their
recoverable amounts with carrying amounts. In determining
the recoverable amount, the Group with the assistance of
the independent external valuer assesses the value in use of
the asset or cash generating unit to which the goodwill has
been allocated by discounting their estimated future cash
flows expected to arise from the asset or cash generating unit
to the present value. Significant judgment and assumptions
were required in the process such as the use of discount rates,
growth rates, estimated average purchase price of natural gas
and average selling price of liquefied natural gas during the
forecast period. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Measurement of the fair value of the unlisted investments
held by an acquired subsidiary

During the year, the Group acquired a subsidiary which
principally engages in investment holding. The subsidiary
held an available-for-sale investment with a carrying amount
of RMB202,200,000 which is unlisted and not publicly traded.
The management is required to measure the fair value of the
unlisted investment held by the subsidiary. The management
engaged an independent external valuer in determining the
fair value of the investments at the date of acquisition and at
the end of reporting period. Judgement and estimations are
required in choosing the appropriate valuation methodology,
adopting the assumptions and use of market comparable
investments and discount rate.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment at 31
March 2017 and 2016 amounted to RMB788,127,000 and
RMB837,086,000, respectively. Property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment and if
the expectation differs from the original estimates, such
differences from the original estimates will impact the
depreciation charges in the year in which the estimates
change.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade and other receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables.
Impairment loss is applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible or when the net present
value of the receivable is less than the carrying amount of the
receivable. The identification of impairment loss requires the
use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation on
the recoverability of trade and other receivables is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade and other receivables and the
impairment in the reporting periods in which such estimate
has been changed. As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables is amounted to
RMB821,839,000 and RMB1,554,880,000, respectively.

Deferred tax assets

The carrying value of deferred tax assets at 31 March 2017
and 2016 amounted to RMB576,000 and RMB4,818,000.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for the unused tax losses
or deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit or taxable temporary
difference will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Management estimation is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
or taxable temporary difference together with future tax
planning strategies.
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HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

6. TURNOVER 6. EXE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFTT
The Group's turnover includes: AEB 7 EHEBERIE -
Gross proceeds from oil and gas sales BHRARARHEEDNZ
contracts (note) FriSsRIB 42 %E (M 5E) 6,182,859 5,656,698
Revenue from sales of goods: HEERZ I :
— Wholesale of LNG —HBEBRICRAR 1,610,135 986,009
— Vehicle gas refuelling stations — RE IR L 8,447 1,295
- Sales of piped gas —HEBERAR 163,154 177,621
Revenue from provision of services: TR RIS 2 Wz
— LNG transportation —BIbRARES 5,979 19,021
— Construction of gas pipeline infrastructure — 2R KARE BE R 2,269 52,5
7,972,843 6,841,169

Note: The net income from oil and gas contracts for the year is RMB22,032,000
(2016: net income RMB59,894,000) which is derived from the gross
proceeds from oil and gas sales contracts of RMB6,182,859,000 (2016:
RMB5,656,698,000) minus the gross amounts of oil and gas purchase
contracts of RMB6,160,827,000 (2016: RMB5,596,804,000).

e FRNABRAARI GO ZBAFER
AR ®22,032,000C (=T —R"F : LA
SHEE A R #59,894,0007T) » BIAH KRR
RAKNFERBELEAR6,182,859,000
T(ZZT—XF : AR5656698000
TI)REBARARREEENBEARE
6,160,827,000 L (=T —7RNF : AR
5,596,804,0007T) °
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7. OPERATING COSTS 7. BERF
2017 2016
—E—+t%F —T—REF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR ARBTT
The Group's operating costs include: REBZEENABIE -

Gross amounts of oil and gas purchase FmERARBESNERE
contracts 6,160,827 5,596,804
Cost of sales of goods HEE R KA 1,742,856 1,110,452
Cost of provision of services MRS 2 A AN 7,347 28,258
7,911,030 6,735,514

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into business units based on the types
of customers and methods used to distribute their products
and provide their services, based on which information is
prepared and reported to the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), the directors of the Company, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of performance. Segment
profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from each
segment without allocation of central administration costs,
share of results of associates, interest income, finance costs
and gain on bargain purchase. This is the measure reported
to the CODM. The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies.
The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

SEHEH
AEERBTPEE N HE MR IEE
HIRF T A B XA - HREER
SRUREY AR ARERTZITES
BRRE(XREERRE ) REN
DEREREFERR - 2 ERF,EIR
BEA BRI E8H,EEEBE I
BT RITHBARAN - BIEBERRZ
RE - NMBRA  BERANZEERE
Ytk o RRERLERREZRZTT
o BT 2RO BERERNKE
ZEFERRAR - REFEMBHREE
AIFEBRALLEDE  AEBZRERE
T2HRDEMAT :

Production and Wholesale of LNG HERIHE HBEBRIERASR
sales of LNG B RIAR

Oil and gas Entering into oil and gas sales and AHRARAR I AHRRAR
transactions purchase contracts R BEEHN

Other operations Vehicle gas refuelling stations, sales S AE MR - HE

of piped gas, LNG transportation

EBARARR ~ BIE

and construction of gas pipeline RIANRE by 2 B2
infrastructure RAREBER
B3
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment turnover and results
Year ended 31 March 2017

8. SEEH ()
PEEHARHM
HE-E—tF=A=1—HILFE

Production
and sales  Oil and gas Other
of LNG transactions operations Total
EERME Ak
REXRE XREXSH L #it

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTT ARWFRT ARRTR ARWTR

Segment turnover from external customers RAMEEZHBEEE 1,610,135 6,182,859 179,849 7,972,843

Intra-segment turnover AEEEER 85,416 - - 85,416
Segment turnover NERE 1,695,551 6,182,859 179,849 8,058,259
Elimination HiH (85,416)
Total turnover L 2 7,972,843
I
Segment results NibEE (54,793) 3,208 9,768 (41,817)
Interest income HBMA 6,243
Share of results of associates RIEBENR EE (9,359)
Finance costs BEKK (42,524)
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBEUE 339
Unallocated corporate expenses AOWOERY (4,210)
Loss before tax BRI &R (91,328)
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment turnover and results (Continued)

8. SEWH(M)
Pt ELVESIC )

Year ended 31 March 2016 HE—FT—NNF=H=+—HIFFE
Production
and sales  Oil and gas Other
of LNG transactions  operations Total
EERHEE AR
BIRAR  RARRS Hfh %% e
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
Segment turnover from external customers KREINDEE 7 DI £%E 986,009 5,656,698 198,462 6,841,169
Intra-segment turnover AEEEER 225,760 - - 225,760
Segment turnover PERE 1211769 5,656,698 198,462 7,066,929
Elimination E3fic] (225,760)
Total turnover BEXE 6,841,169
Segment results PEEE (61,889) 44,819 22,071 5,001
Interest income FEMA 45,248
Share of results of associates EiEHE AR EE 4,224
Finance costs BEKR (48,451)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAMEERT (12,108)
Loss before tax BRAIEE (6,086)
Segment assets and liabilities SDEEEREE

Information of the operating segments of the Group reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment does not include any assets and
liabilities. Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities
information are presented.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. PEBEHE(4&)
Other segment information Bt SEH
Other segment information included in the measurement of FTENHEERSHEEMS 2B MY
segment results and segment assets are as follow: EERIOT -
Production
and sales  Oil and gas Other
of LNG transactions  operations Total
HEERBE Rk
REXRE XREXSH R R #it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-_E2-t%
ZRAZt+-HL#E
Additions to non-current assets ANEFRBEE 1,527 100 16,407 18,034
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment e BERRELTE 46,218 10,112 10,648 66,978
Amortisation of intangible asset BV EEZEH - - 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ENRER 2 HH 1,121 126 115 1,362
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE RE 2 W
plant and equipment (5) - - (5)
Year ended 31 March 2016 BECE-RE
ZA=+-HLEE
Additions to non-current assets REETBEE 1,720 621 18,621 20,962
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BERREZITE 44,146 9,093 12,095 65,334
Amortisation of intangible asset BV EEZHE = - 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BNHEER &H 1,121 126 115 1,362
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWE - BERREIER
plant and equipment (W) 28 6) 92) (70)
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‘ For the year ended 31 March 2017

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
segment turnover by geographical location of customers
irrespective of the origin of the goods delivered or services
rendered and the Group's non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets:

PEEE(E)
HEEH

TREHAEBRE PR w3
NEmkARERE 2 KRS D25
MEXBRAREBREEMELE D 2
FEREBEEZ DM -

Turnover
BxE
Production and Oil and gas
sales of LNG transactions Other operations Non-current assets*
SERMERLXNR  GHRARERS AR FnBEE

2017 W 2017
it S
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ABRTR ARETT ARWTR

M6 2017 06 2017 016
ZERE ZB-tE CEnE 28t CFR
RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'0D  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTTL ABRIR ARMTT ARRTR ARETR

The PRC, other than Hong Kong mE (FAR) 1,610,135 986,009 1,127,766
Singapore i1 - - 5,055,093
Hong Kong Bk - = -
Korea &H - = -

2223640 179,849 198462 1,194,855 1,053,097
2614313 - - - -
611,560 - - 127 21
207,185 - - - -

1,610,135 986,009 6,182,859

5606698 179,849 198462 1,194,982 1,053 324

Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax
assets.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. PEBEHE(4&)
Information about major customers FTEEFEH
Production and sales of LNG and Other operations SERBERILXARRLUREMER
Turnover arose from customers represents more than 10% of (EEEMREERIERAR R EMERFT
the total segment turnover from production and sales of LNG EEZEDMBEXRIONNLEZERE
and other operations are as follows: RN ¢
2017 2016
—Z2—tF —E—RF
RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Customer A ZEA 493,009 225,264
Customer B = 5B N/A (note)
FER (PeE) 165,211
Customer C ZEC N/A (note)
AER (M) 121,719
493,009 512,194
Oil and gas transactions LHRERERS
Turnover arose from customers represents more than 10% of (ERMERARR BEEL 2 a3
the total segment turnover from oil and gas transactions are LEI0%A Py BRI
as follows:
2017 2016
—Z2—t%F —T-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Customer D =FED 2,252,999 1,569,549
Customer E ZFE 2,056,827 1,523,192
Customer F ZFEF 800,959 725,963
Customer G ZFEG 632,906 723,570
5,743,691 4,542,274
Note: The corresponding turnover of the customer did not contribute over 10% M REMAELEEEREO B A pLE
of the total segment turnover of the relevant segment. 5 IR B AR IB10% ©
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hflg A
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Interest income from KRBTSR ZHEHA
— banks —R1T 2,730 6,682
— a non-controlling equity owner of —BARZ —BIFTERER
subsidiaries wEA = 2,618
- long-term receivables — REAFE WRIE 3,513 3,947
— third-party —E=7 - 19,163
- a related party ——EZBHEEAL - 12,838
6,243 45,248
Government grant (note) R4 B (PR &E) 5,000 -
Others EHAftb 856 1,331
12,099 46,579
Note: The Group entitled to a government grant of RMB5,000,000 in the Mz : AEBRAFEER —HBRHBARE
current year as an incentive for locating the principal office of a Group's 5,000,0007T * fERAEEGHE —HHEEE
subsidiary with a certain amount of paid-up capital in Guangzhou City. THRERAZHMBRARAZEERZRIZN
BN T ) 228 -
10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hftl iy & B 5 4R
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —EREF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR#®TR ARBTT
Gain on disposal of property, HEWME - BERZE W
plant and equipment 5 70
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain SN (518 ) W e 5 58 (5,596) 178
Loss on fair value change of embedded BRARTET AR FEES 2
derivatives (note 39) 518 (FIEE39) (1,775) (2,363)
Gain on bargain purchase arising from Wi — I B AR EA Z&HE
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 41) 8 8 Was (I EE41) 339 =

(7,027) (2,115)
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11. FINANCE COSTS 1. MERE
2017 2016
—2—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFTT
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 2 S 33,369 33,083
Interest on convertible bond AR ES 2 A 9,538 3,764
Finance leases MEHRE 59 574
Total interest charges MEZHERE 42,966 37,421
Less: Amount capitalised in construction in  J& : R TR BNt &5
progress (note) (FF3E) 442 1,054
42,524 36,367
Other finance costs (see note 23) ot & B AN (R EE23) = 12,084
42,524 48,451
Note:  The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 6.6% per annum iz : BE—T—+E=A=+—RHILFE &
for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: 6.6%). BRAREIETF6.6%B(ZT—7NF 1 6.6%)
2B -
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FREMXZH
2017 2016
—E—+tE —T—NE
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

The charge comprises: X e
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEHR
— Current year —REE (1,164) (285)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PR BRAEHR
([EEMFHR])
— Current year —RFE (3,973) (32,013)
— Underprovision in prior years —BEFERETRE (1) (1,036)
(3,974) (33,049)
Deferred taxation (note 25) RFER 18 (i FE25)
- Current year —RFE (8,781) 19,399
(13,919) (13,935)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated EENMEMR IIEEMEEE 2 (i ER
assessable profit for both years. PR FIR16. 5% 2 FiRETE o
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HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC EIT has been provided at the applicable income tax rate
of 25% on the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries of
the Group except for SR Z HTM 2 28R B2 A (“Xingxing
Energy”), EMMEZEEIRBIR A F] (“Huixin Energy”) and &M
EZHREEARAA (“Huaheng Energy”) which are taxed at
concessionary rate in certain years.

As set out below, the applicable PRC EIT concessionary rate
for Xingxing Energy, Huixin Energy and Huaheng Energy is
15%, which are under the preferential tax treatment that given
to companies established in the western regions in the PRC
and derived at least 70% of their total income from their main
business in oil and gas industry which falling within the list of
encouraged industries specified by the PRC government.

Xingxing Energy was registered with the local tax authority
to be eligible to the reduced 15% enterprise income tax rate
from 2013 to 2020. Accordingly, Xingxing Energy is eligible for
the EIT of 15% (2016: 15%).

Huixin Energy was registered with the local tax authority to be
eligible to the reduced 15% enterprise income tax rate from
2012 to 2020. Accordingly, Huixin Energy is eligible for the EIT
of 15% (2016: 15%).

Huaheng Energy was entitled to a 15% preferential rate since
its establishment on 24 June 2011 with no definite period and
subject to annual review and approval of local tax authority.

12. FRSRSTH (&)

AEBEREMBAR(NETFERE
BEHRERN . SBLHTEERRAR
~A)(T2ERER]) EMMERERE
RAR(TESREER]) REMNETEIRR
BAERAR([EZEEIR RN Z R
T4 M) B 1258 B P 15 B0 A5 R 25% 5 B
DEMSHRIELEME -

MM XFE - EERER - BEERK
FEFRRERATBELEMEHRESRR
KR15%  ZEMBRARZANTEA
MMRKIHABMER 2 HBEE
BHBWAZZDT0%KEERAH R
RARATH (B B BUR 46 € B 5B
TEBEN)ZEBER -

EERFREREMBREBIIER B
T——ERE T -TEAZZHRE
15%RIEFTSHREE - At - 228
TRAIZ15% ( ZF —75F @ 15%) KB &
BN TS -

EZEROCREMBBEHBIIZEL =
T ——ERE T -TEAZZRERE
15%HEEMERIE - Bt - [EHE
RATIE15% (=T —RF  15%) iFi R
BN EFTBH -

ETRRE-_ZE——F R XAZTHAK
MZBRAZERIS%ZEEHE - BE
RE HABBEWHEHFICFER
BRI -
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

12. FRSM3ZH ()
BEGABEREC2ERARE - F
P2 T 45 432 11 7 B2 4 A1 A 1R B 1

loss before tax per consolidated statement of profits or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows: T
2017 2016
—tF AN
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARETTT
Loss before tax KR A E 1B (91,328) (6,086)
PRC EIT at 25% H25% R BT B R
FriS%t 22,832 1,522
Tax effect of results of associates o YNCIE -y i3 7 (2,340) 1,056
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ Na[MMFFHZ 2 G E
tax purpose (11,266) (5,900
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax HEEBHRBWA TG E
purpose 2,131 825
Underprovision of PRC EIT in prior years BEFREPECEMSH
BETR (1 (1,036)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible RAERZRIEEER
temporary differences not recognised AT TR =58 2 IS & (32,371) (1,787)
Effect of concessionary tax rates granted BTHEIMBR R ER
to certain PRC subsidiaries at 15% BERERZZE(R15%) 6,496 (10,540
Utilisation of tax losses or deductible ERERNARER BB ER
temporary difference previously not A MR E R E /R
recognised - 1,777
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries E/‘ Lt RUARE RS 2 T8
operating in other jurisdictions RAEAIZTRABREz 8 600 148
Income tax expense for the year REFFAEH I H (13,919) (13,935)
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. XEEEIR
2017 2016
—E—tF —ENE
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Loss for the year has been arrived REFEBEENR
at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration ZE A& 1,800 1,600
Amortisation of intangible asset B EE 2 B

(included in administrative expense) (FEATTEHAS) 393 393
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TENFRE R 2 # 1,362 1,362
Cost of inventories recognised ERAERAI 2 FERA

as an expense 1,742,856 1,110,452
Depreciation of property, M - BERERE2ITE

plant and equipment 66,978 65,334
Directors’ emoluments (see note 14) EE=ie (RHIFE14) 4,160 3,853
Operating lease payment in respect BRARNYEZ EEHENRK

of office premises 3,047 2,787
Salaries and other benefits TERHAMET 43,920 50,003
Retirement benefits schedule contributions E{REFIFTEIMHE R 5,083 4,827
Total staff costs BT 4%

(excluding directors’ emoluments) (TBRESHE) 49,003 54,830
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14 EERITHRASZHS

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2017

FREFRTHRASEZHEREER L
AR R REERRGPIWENT

BE_ T+ F=H="1—HIFE

Mr.Wang Mr. Bao Mr. Zhou
Jianqing Jun Jian Total
IF@BEE FEXE BARXE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTRE AR®BTRT AER®TRT
(note a)
(M¥aEa)
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A) RBRITES
Fees ik 650 450 100 1,200
Other emoluments HEi &
Basic salaries and EXFHe R
allowance AL 757 550 960 2,267
Contributions to retirement RIREFIET
benefits schemes S 65 50 78 193
Total emoluments B <& 48 KE 1,472 1,050 1,138 3,660

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14. EERTHARZH S (H)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Dr. Leung Mr. Wong Mr. Tom
Hoi Ming Chi Keung Xie Total
ZHARLET FZEEE WHEHBEE et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTRE AR®BTRT AER®%TRT
B) INDEPENDENT NON- B) MILIEHIT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ES
Fees we 150 200 150 500
Other emoluments HEmiNe
Basic salaries and EXFek
allowance JEBL - - - -
Contributions to retirement RIRBFET
benefits schemes E Ry = = = =
Total emoluments & 4858 150 200 150 500

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

EXPRERITER 2R T RAEE
ERRAERRBZREMA -
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14. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S M4 EERITHRERSZHME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2016 e —E-—_NF=F=1+—HIFE

Mr. Wang Mr.Bao  Mr. Zhou

Jianging Jun Jian Total
EFRBRE RELXE AREE et

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBTFT ARBTT ARETT

(note a)
(ftzEa)
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A) BITEE
Fees we 617 427 95 1,139
Other emoluments Hib &
Basic salaries and ERFGFE R
allowance =4 704 497 856 2,057
Contributions to retirement BRI HRIET
benefits schemes 2R 62 48 73 183
Total emoluments 4 42 %8 1,383 972 1,024 3,379
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were XA TR E NS T ESHEE
mainly for their services in connection with the management AANFTEAEBSERIERHZBREMS
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. ff o
Note a: Mr. Wang Jianging is also the chief executive of the Company and his Mita: TEBLEANMEBAATZITHER X
emoluments disclosed above include those of services rendered by WEHSEMBIEEEATHRERTIRM
him as the chief executive. BRFE 2 BN -
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HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14. EERTHARZH S (H)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Dr. Leung Mr. Wong Mr. Tom
Hoi Ming Chi Keung Xie Total
REABET ToREE FWEHFEEE st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT ARETI ARETT
B) INDEPENDENT NON- B) MILIHIT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ES
Fees we 142 190 142 474
Other emoluments HEmNe
Basic salaries and EXFHek
allowance AL - - - =
Contributions to retirement RIRBFET
benefits schemes B R — = = -
Total emoluments Bl 42 %8 142 190 142 474

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

During both years, no emolument were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as compensation for loss of
office or an inducement to join in upon joining the Group.

There were no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waive or agreed to waive any emolument
during both years.

EXFIRGERITES RS ERAENE
EARRAEFRHZ RN -

RREFE  AEEYTEFARNABES
XAERM S RRER R E S IMARSE
B ARE EIR A 2R -

RREFE  SEEFHITHARME
KRB REEM M 2 5 -
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HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

15. EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments working
for the Group, three (2016: three) were the directors and
the chief executive of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 14 above. The emoluments
of remaining two (2016: two) highest paid individuals fall
within the band of not more than HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB867,480) and details were as follows:

15. EEE &

ETRRAEE s EE&RFMALZ
o BRI =F(ZF—RF: =8R)AL
REARNAEERITHAER - MRE 2
SEINALXMFUZHEEER - H
BRE(ZE—RF  WB)RSFHHA
+ 2 B & 7 F T #8E 1,000,000 7T (16
ERARMES67,48070) 2 €& - FFIEM
T

2017 2016
—e—tE —FTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Basic salaries and allowance HEHARE ¢ MoERL 1,200 812

Contributions to retirement RORtE AT B R
benefits schemes 128 84
1,328 896
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16.

17.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed by the
Company during both years, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The weighted average number of shares used for the purpose
of calculating basic (loss) earnings per share for the both years
has been adjusted as if the Consideration Shares was issued
at 1 April 2013, on the basis that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared as if the UHL and its subsidiaries
("UHL Group”) had been combined from the date when UHL
Group first came under the control of the common controlling
party of the Company and UHL Group (see note 2).

The calculation of the basic loss per share for the year
is based on the loss (2016: profit) attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately RMB84,591,000
(2016: RMB9,676,000) and the weighted average number of
5,718,945,104 (2016: 5,487,510,416) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The computation of diluted (loss) earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 does not assume the
conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible bond
since their exercise would not result in an increase/decrease
in loss/earnings per share.

16.

17.

BB

MEFEARRBEEK - EIRE
BRI - B REHRETEZ®
IRAERIARR

=B (5R)E2H
AHEMEFEZSRER(EBR)BHHM
RZ EFARBEAERE - B =
T-=—FMOA-HBHTRERD - £
RSB VB HRAR T RRB R AN B
NE([BMREE])EBAEEERAZA
N N B AR SR B LRI i) U7 #R I E B R
EAHmmE(RHE2) -

AEESREABRIEARERIZE
ANEBEBE(ZZE—XNF  Z7)HOAR
#84,591,000C(ZZE—RF : ARE
9,676,0007T) R F N B 81T & B N
85,718,945, 104R% ( — T — /< &F ¢
5,487,510,416%) 5T & -

AEEE T LFR-_T-RF=A
=t HUEFEZESRES(ER) AT
Ry N MR 3R S MR R R BB R SN AT R AR
&% BETETSSIBEREE &
FIsE o0, R o
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| @m—s_trcA=t-AreE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. M3 - ME R\
Plant Furniture,
and Motor  fixture and Construction
machinery  Buildings Pipeline vehicles  equipment in progress Total
i RE

RERER B B L1 kil  =RIR #it
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB'O00  RMB'000

AEETT ARETR ARMTT ARMTR ARETn ARMTR ARET:R

COST K&
At 1 April 2015 R-Z-RFMA—H 864,953 162,840 78,631 67,693 5,652 18,593 1,198,362
Additions NE 44 94 - 1,719 172 18,536 20962
Transfer = 10,245 559 = = = (10,804) =
Disposals e (660) - - (7.922) (109) = (8,691)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—5%

=A=t+-8 874,979 163,493 78,631 61,490 5,715 26,325 1,210,633
Additions NE 364 236 - 3N 170 16,893 18,034
Transfer = - 1,188 34,729 - 17 (35,934) -
Disposals HE = - = (736) (98) = (834)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F

=A=1-H 875,343 164,917 113,360 61125 5,804 7,284 1,221,833
ACCUMULATED ZiinE

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2015 R-Z-HEMA-H 224,743 35,560 3,980 47 808 3,830 - 315,921
Provided for the year FERE 45,250 7,622 4,354 7,663 445 - 65,334
Eliminated on disposals R ER (69) - - (7,578) (61) - (7,708)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-—RE

=R=1-H 269,924 43182 8,334 47893 44 - 373,547
Provided for the year EEEE 47,751 7,690 4911 6,150 470 = 66,978
Eliminated on disposals M ER = = = (724) 95) = (819)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF

=A=t+-A 317,681 50,872 13,245 53,319 4,589 - 439,706
CARRYING AMOUNTS RAE
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F

=R=1-H 557,662 114,045 100,115 7,806 1,215 7,284 788,127
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RE

=A=t+-A8 605,055 120,311 70,297 13,597 1,501 26,325 837,086
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BEC

18.

19.

—tFE=ZA=1T—HLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. % - Wi B ax i (48)
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for i BMEEKEER (EEIRE
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line Broh) IS st MR EBEEEE G
basis, taking into account residual value, over their estimated FREHRAEGEERE
useful lives:
Plant and machinery 10 - 20 years TR B5 Bt g% 102204
Buildings 20 years B3 204F
Pipeline 20 years B 204
Vehicles 4 — 8 years B3 4Z8F
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 -5years Rk - B K& 3E5F
The buildings are situated in the PRC and held under BTN ERRPHEOFEA -
medium-term lease.
Motor vehicles with carrying amount of RMB7,423,000 were RZE—AR"FEF=ZA=+—H ' &&
held under finance leases as at 31 March 2016 which have BN F A EWMEAMEAARE
been fully repaid during the year. 7,423,000 R ERFABEER -
Buildings with carrying value of RMB57,156,000 and RZE—+tRZF—AR"F=ZA=1+—
RMB55,168,000 as at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively, H URFPEZEFEREES I AA
located in the PRC are in the process of obtaining the building R#&57,156,0007C & A R #& 55,168,000
certificates. T AEBFHREEZEERESR -
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. MfIEER
Prepaid lease payments represent land use rights in the PRC ENHEEREASERETPRANES
obtained by the Group under medium-term lease and are Rz T E R - REmM = O
analysed for reporting purposes as: wmR
2017 2016
—Z2—tF —E—RF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Current assets MENE B 1,362 1,362
Non-current assets EMENE E 37,309 38,671
38,671 40,033
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19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued) 19. BfIHHER(#E)
At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group is in the process RZE—+tFR T —RF=ZA=+—
of applying for the land use rights certificate for a piece B AEEESLZNH BN —E LR
of land located in the PRC amounting to approximately BT HEREE  HEE NNAAR
RMB3,385,000 and RMB3,462,000, respectively. In the opinion %4 3,385,000 T & A R #3,462,0007T °
of the directors of the Company, the Group is not required ARREERE  AEEBTEMEGEZ
to incur significant additional cost in obtaining the land use Ve b L Hb 5 RS B B E KB IMNK
rights certificates for such piece of land. 7N o
20. GOODWILL 20. &
Amount
&8
RMB'000
ARETT
COST 5%
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and R-_TE—AFMHA—AH -
31 March 2017 —T-RF=ZA=+—H
—E—+F=HA=+—H 56,740
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT Retisi{E
At 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZE—AFMA—HBR
—E-RF=ZA=+—H =
Impairment loss recognised in the year FREHERRERR 22,670
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 22,670
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+F=A=+—H 34,070
At 31 March 2016 RZE—XRF=ZA=+—H 56,740

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to UHL and its subsidiaries which represent the
production and sales of LNG segment, together as one group
of cash generating units (“CGUs"), which represents the
lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and is not larger than the
operating segment of production and sales of LNG, that are
expected to benefit from the business combination.
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HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

20.

GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling price
and direct costs of LNG during the projection period. The
directors of the Company estimate discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the group of CGUs.
The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period,
and a discount rate of 13.35% (2016: 13.07%) for the year
ended 31 March 2017. The cash flows projections beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth
rates. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations relate to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. The directors of the Company believes that
any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the
assets of the group of the CGUs to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the assets of the group of the CGUs.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of RMB22,670,000 (2016: nil) in respect of
goodwill in view of the continuing fall in LNG prices and stiff
market competition.

20. EE(48)

ReEABMAR kBB IRE
EREEFEAET - EREEME
HAEZEBBRRIVEERNMAZAR
K RBERPULRBICRARZEBRE
BERABHEHER - ARRESKRA
BREUATLL RAEFTRAIR X - ZBRBLATLL R
[RARER & 7 4 B AR 2 &R E R
TR ZREM G - BRETDER
TREREN - EERERXNAZE T
HERNBEERI RS RRERTAS -

ZETE T AFERE SRR ENE R
B ENAFHUBEERBEE_Z
—+F=ZA=1+—BIFEZHER
13.35% ( —ZZF —7F : 13.07%) ° i
AFHZRSREAFERETERE
I%HE o ZIBRE AN T Y
RIEA B TNHRBABITE P RAE
X - FHEBBENEHFEACEMEER
RNEBERBREEEHEREN 2E S
AT AR AN
BANBARBEREEEHMBREZ
TEH - AR RIEERE  EHZERR
ZEMEEEEEN I SERIRCESE
BNAREE BRMAEBRARCEE
BAAREE JREIBSEE -

HE-_T—+HE=A=+—HItFE
REBRABRICAADIBREETRR
BEIN TSR E R BRERBAEREA
R#22,670,000C(=ZF—"F : &) °
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSET

21. B EE

The intangible asset of the Group represents a subsidiary’s
exclusive operating right of sales of piped gas to white
wine distillery factories located in Renhuai City of Guizhou
Provinces in the PRC under a supplementary agreement
entered into among the subsidiary, another subsidiary of
the Company and EMM R (KL E ) B R & F 2 A (Guizhou
Gas (Group) Co., Ltd) ("Guizhou Gas"). Guizhou Gas,
which obtained an exclusive operating licences from local
government for the operation of sales of piped gas in
designated areas in Renhuai City of Guizhou Provinces in the
PRC (“Designated Area”) over a period from the year 2007
to 2037, granted exclusive right to a subsidiary of the Group
to operate in the Designated Area. The intangible asset has
finite useful lives, and is amortised on a straight-line basis
over the remaining operating period of 20 (2016: 21) years.

AEE B EER —HHNBARIRE
ARRZMBRARE  m—HBRARIKE
MR (RE)BRET AR EMMR
RBE 2@t pRAMLR T EEMNE
CEmzAEREREEEBRARZ
BREERE - BENRR(BRERBRA
ESEPEEMECEmEEmR (15
i DEEHEEBRARZBRE
LR FHR_ZETHFE_T=+
FIERTAKE-—HNBRRERETE
MWEZBREEE BREERGRA
EREH - RELZENESR MEEH205F
(ZT—RF : 215)N#H -

Operating right

EER
RMB’000
AREFIT
COST B
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and R-_TE—RAFMHA—AH -
31 March 2017 —E-ARF=ZA=+—HK
—E—+F=A=+—H 9,837
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Rt
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—RFMA—H 885
Provided for the year F N 393
At 31 March 2016 R-E—RF=ZA=1+—H 1,278
Provided for the year FREE 393
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+F=A=+—H 1,671
CARRYING AMOUNT IREE
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 8,166
At 31 March 2016 R-E—ARF=ZA=1+—H 8,559
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

22. REERTFIZHR

2017 2016

—E—t%F —E—RF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

Cost of unlisted investment in associates Bt N E 2 IE ETIRE KA 141,235 106,735
Share of post-acquisition results RN B8 345 (4,673) 4,686
136,562 111,421

The Group's associates accounted for using the equity

method and their details are as follows:

REBBE AR DEREDREAR  H

FHEWT

Effective equity

Place and date of Paid-in capital/ interest
incorporation/ registered attributable to
Name of associate establishment capital the Group Principal activities
REMRARSL, B3I B 2F 12
BHELFIER RBH HEMEE FREEGEREE IERH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—F
EMRR(EE)RAR PRC RMB350,000,000 20.0% 20.0% Investment in
THREBARDA 25 July 2013 LNG pipeline
(“Guiran Pipeline Company”) infrastructure and
sales of piped gas
BEMNAR(EE)XAR & AR 20.0% 20.0% RERILRAR
XIREBERAT —T-=f 350,000,0007C EEERRER
(TEmEBAA]) +A=-+AA HEBBARAAR
DEZEHMNELEIR PRC RMB 10,000,000 20.0% 20.0%  Provision of logistic
RAER AT 8 January 2007 service
(“Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic”)
SRLHMNELEIR H AR 20.0% 20.0% REVRRY
WRERAT —TELF 10,000,0007T
(ThZz=ElEmirl) —ANR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. RBELQTIZHE ()
Effective equity

Place and date of Paid-in capital/ interest
incorporation/ registered attributable to

Name of associate establishment capital the Group Principal activities
EEMBRRIL RSB =% {2 4

- /NCEE kB EMEx FEEFEEERBE 2TEXH

2017 2016

~EB—tF _T—RE

EMNMR(ER)BKEZ PRC RMB40,000,000 49.7% 49.7%  Sales of piped gas
SRMRABRDA 12 July 2012
(“Xishui Jingiao Company”)
BEMBRR(EE) BEXE F AR 49.7% 49.7% HEBBRAR
TRMRRARRA —E-=F 40,000,0007T
(MBkeBAA]) +A+=H
REK LEBARAF PRC RMB 100,000,000 34.5% N/A  Provision of logistic
(“Lvdong Shuiyun 3 November 2014 service
Company”)
HEKEEBERAA aal= AR 34.5% NER  REDRRSE
(T EKERF]) i 100,000,0007T
+—HA=R
& All the Group's associates are operated in the PRC and are accounted for * REBFRAR SN NRBELEEBL
using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. WERE IR E AR AR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. REBEATIZEG(1E)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's BRAEEBERR ZMEEREE
associates is set out below. FIER o
Guiran Pipeline Company BREELNF

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —EREF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Current assets TmENEE 173,406 288,322
Non-current assets IERBEE 994,427 503,988
Current liabilities mEAE (250,209) (59,187)
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE (570,164) (367,413)
2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Total revenue 4a k25 148,064 157,836
(Loss) profit for the year REE (F5E )& F (18,250) 13,396
The Group's share of result of associate NEEFEEHME AT 2 ¥EE (3,650) 2,680
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. REIERNFRIZHER(1E)
Guiran Pipeline Company (Continued) BEMEE L (E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LA E R B EAR A B SRR AR
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate RN E N 2w 2 REELE :

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016
—ZE—t%F —E—R
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Net assets of associate B NB 2 FEE 347,460 365,710
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEREE AR ERER

interest in associate pdsd] 20% 20%

The Group's share of net assets of associate ZN&EBEEHL A F 2 HEE 69,492 73,142
Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic AL EIEY 7

2017 2016

—=—+tF —E-REF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETTT

Current assets TENEE 50,869 38,154
Non-current assets IERBEE 8,608 8,979
Current liabilities mEatE (80,810) (66,166)
Non-current liabilities JEMBEE - -
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic (Continued)

hEEIEY T (&)

22. RHRELTIZHI(])

2017 2016

—Z2—tF —E-RE

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARMBFTT

Total revenue Ak 25 2,578 29,745

(Loss) profit for the year REZ (EE) A (2,300) 1,600

The Group's share of result of associate AEERGHE NP 2 EE - =
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information i B RS R B AR A B TS SRR N R

to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

RZRBERR 2 e 2 REELR

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR%®TR ARETT

Net liabilities of associate BERNTZFAE (21,333) (19,033)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEREE N AHEEEER

interest in associate sl 20% 20%

Less: unrecognised share of W RIERRIE (G B A
net liabilities of associate FEE 4,267 3,806

The Group's share of net liabilities
of associate

AEBREBERRZFRE

The Group has discontinued recognition of the share of losses
of Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic as of the fact that Jiu An Xi Shun Eia
Logistic's total liabilities exceeded its total assets.

HBEE -

AEEERILEREBENZEIBYIRZ
RAB/NLEIRYR 2 B A EEB
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. WRBEATFIZES(HE)
Jiu An Xi Shun Logistic (Continued) NLEIEY 7 (&)
The amounts of unrecognised share of result of Jiu An Xi Shun BENLEIBMRERE L AERE T
Logistic are as follows: O
2017 2016
—Z2—tF —F—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR®TT ARET T

Unrecognised share of (loss) profit of AEREEBENRAERE
the associate for the year (B8 )mF (460) 320
Accumulated unrecognised share of 2 ARMERE(GH L A REE
losses of the associate (6,708) (6,248)
Xishui Jingiao Company TokLELE
2017 2016
—Z—+tF AN
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT
Current assets MEVEE 6,240 19,710
Non-current assets JEMBNEE 64,197 68,494
Current liabilities mENRE (40,079) (49,158)
Non-current liabilities FmBAE - -
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. REIERNFRIZHER(1E)
Xishui Jingiao Company (Continued) BKEHE A (&)
2017 2016
—=—+tf —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARET T

Total revenue FEl g 34,401 34,071
(Loss) Profit for the year RNEE () %5 F (8,688) 3,090
The Group's share of result of associate AEBEBGHENR 2 HEE (4,344) 1,544
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information it B AR B RS B IR ER NTE
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate BUABE N T kRS v BEEE YR ¢

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016
—Z2—tF —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARET T

Net assets of associate Bt N T2 FEE 30,358 39,046
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEREE NG EER

interest in associate pdsa il 50% 50%

15,179 19,523

Goodwill [EES 18,756 18,756

The Group's share of net assets of associate AN B E(GEE R A2/ FEE 33,935 38,279
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

22. RHRELTIZHI(])

Lvdong Shuiyun Company AREIKIE I F]
2017 2016
—=—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFIT
Current assets MENEE 34,056 N/A
ANiE A
Non-current assets EmBEE 151,079 N/A
NiE A
Current liabilities mEaE (104,242) N/A
TEA
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,560) N/A
TEA
2017 2016
—=—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFIT
Total revenue Frllogas 222 N/A
NiE A
Loss for the year NEFEEE (3,955) N/A
TiEA
The Group's share of result of associate REBREBERNR 2 FE (1,365) N/A
TE A
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Lvdong Shuiyun Company (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information

to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

22. RHRELTIZHI(])

RE)KERF ()
BB ENBERES

R ek

RN E R R] 2 e 2 REELR

2017 2016

—ZE2—+tF —ET—REF

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR#®TR ARBTT

Net assets of associate B NaEl 2 FEE 79,333 N/A
NiEMA

Proportion of the Group's ownership REBEREZL N B A ERER 34.5% N/A
interest in associate s il NiE A
27,370 N/A

NiE A

Goodwill 7 5,765 N/A
T ERA

The Group's share of net assets REBEE(EEZ AT 33,135 N/A
of associate ZEEE iE A

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group acquired
34.5% equity interests of Lvdong Shuiyun Company from
independent third parties at a total consideration of
RMB34,500,001. Goodwill of RMB5,765,000 was recognised by

the Group.

RBE_Z—tF=RA=+—HItHF

B AEEABIE=77KBEZRIHK

BRFIHAS%IE  BRER/ARK

34,500,0017C ° NEBEEREEARE

5,765,0007T °
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23. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES 23. REAEIHRIA

2017 2016
—E—tE T AE
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Unsecured long-term receivables
— interest bearing at 9.6% per annum

AR R H R UGROR
—IEH K9 6%5T B

(notes a & b) (BfsFakeb) 5,138 5,138
- non-interest bearing (note b) — % 2 (FfizEb) 59,181 82,674
— interest receivables from deposit paid for — FtU & — R & A &) FT S A+
acquisition of an associate (note 24) & 2 IR B (FFE24) 32,187 -
96,506 87,812
Less: Amount due within one year and B R —FERBE T ARS
included under current assets BEFIEMED)
(note b) (59,181) (27,0006)
37,325 60,806
Note a: FffsEa :

The amount represents amount due from a former equity owner of subsidiaries
which is unsecured and interest bearing at a fixed rate of 9.6% per annum. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the amount is not expected to be
recovered within twelve months from 31 March 2017 and 2016 and accordingly
was classified as non-current asset.

Note b:

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group entered into debt assignment
agreements (“Agreements”) with an independent third party. Pursuant to
the Agreements, the Group has agreed to transfer an amount due from the
former equity owner of subsidiaries as mentioned above and an amount due
from a non-controlling equity owner of subsidiaries (together referred to the
“Receivables”) of RMB53,168,000 and RMB41,590,000, respectively outstanding
at Agreements date to an independent third party for an aggregate
consideration of RMB90,020,000.

According to the Agreements, 30% of the consideration of RMB27,006,000
was repaid in June 2016. The remaining 70% of the consideration would be
repaid within two years from the Agreements date and included under the
current assets. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free, and measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method at the borrowing rate
of 6.31% per annum. The difference between the amortised costs of the
consideration receivables and the carrying amount of the Receivables being
transferred was included under “other finance costs” during the year ended 31
March 2016 as set out in note 11.
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REBE-Z—AF=A=+—HLFE  ~EER
—RBUE= RV ERERRE([1HE]) - BIE
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24. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF AN 24. KI—MBEAFZEfERE

ASSOCIATE

The amount represents the deposit paid by the acquired
subsidiary (as detailed in note 41) for acquisition of 11.5%
equity interest of RMIXK A EHBERAE (Quanzhou
Zhenrong Petrochemical Storage Company Limited)
("Zhenrong Storage”) which is secured by certain property,
plant and equipment of Zhenrong Storage and its subsidiary,
and is interest bearing at 15% per annum. The management
considered that the amount will become the consideration of
the acquisition of 11.5% equity interest of Zhenrong Storage
upon completion of the acquisition and accordingly was
classified as non-current asset. The interest receivables are
included under "long-term receivables” as set out in note 23.

A% RIEE P P B A B (R R P RE4T)
AU RMNER AR AR AR (TR
RER DN S%EELDNRE - &)
HIRRARREMBARNE TYE -
B 5 MR B EER - WIRF M R15%5T
B-EEERR ZAFABREET
P& AR R UIB IR B 711 .5% B i 2 X
B AURIBER/IERBDEE - B
FB T5 AR EE23FT B AT A [ 5 HA FE Wk
] e
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. RIERIA
The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) NTFABRERNEEEMRAZEBIEL
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the MBEBEE(AE)AREES -
years.
Fair value
adjustment of
properties and
Accelerated intangible asset Temporary
tax  upon business difference
depreciation combination on accruals Tax losses Total
REaHE
WER
mERE BVEEL BEHERZ
e NEERE ERER REGR i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 31 March 2015 RZZ-1%=H
=1+-H (12,782) (3,100) 1,301 - (14,581)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss BB (31%)E A (460) 174 (287) 19,972 19,399
At 31 March 2016 RZF-~E=A
=t+-8 (13,242) (2,926) 1,014 19,972 4818
(Charge) credit to profit or loss BB (k)T A (845) 128 (1137) (6,927) (8,781)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+%=A
=t+-A (14,087) (2,798) (123) 13,045 (3,963)
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated BE2IGETBERABRKRME * B TIE
statements of financial position, certain deferred taxation ERIEEERAEBCIERE - LT AR
assets and liabilities has been offset. The following is R 2MENMEHNELERIBESRD
the analysis of the deferred taxation balance for financial o
reporting purposes:
2017 2016
—2—tF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Deferred tax assets BT I A = 576 4,818
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEE E (4,539) =
(3,963) 4,818
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 25. BEEMIA ()

Under the EIT law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiary amounting to
RMB136,869,000 (2016: RMB98,859,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised
tax losses of approximately RMB237,660,000 (2016:
RMB162,105,000), available for offset against the future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of such tax losses of approximately RMB86,967,000 as at
31 March 2017 (2016: RMB133,144,000). Included in the tax
losses are losses of approximately RMB224,329,000 (2016:
RMB106,837,000) that will expire within five years from the
end of the reporting period. Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

REFBEEERMBRZE =TT N\F
—A— B ZPENBARREG 2%
MBI RS - BEZXERNR - 6
B 75 S 2k 2 oK it AP B P B 2 B P R EDU2
F R A5 B B B 2= 22 A R #6136,869,000
TT(ZZE—RF : AR¥98,859,0007T)
YRR E N IR - [ 7S 5 B T 422 1l 8%
ClFGE ZRAEE - Br kR E8E8
NERA R REE -

RBEHR  AEEHEEABAKRE
EEH AR 237,660,0007T ( —Z—7~
£ AR®162,105,0007T) » A] {8
R HEF - RZEBE—+EF=A=+—
H BEEHRELEEERZSEREBEY
AR 86,967,000 ( ZZE—/RF : A
R #133,144,0007T) F LATERR o FRLIE/E
BEREEBRBREHRERFAE R
B8 49 A R #224,329,0007T ( — & — 7%
F: AR#106,837,0007T) @ EAhFHIE
518 A] LA 1% S R HR 4562 o
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26. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 26. ATHHHERT
RMB’000
ARBTTT
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value ELETRAKRE - AT E
At 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 RZZE—RAFMNA—BR=ZF—X F
=A=+—H -
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary (note 41)  F@UKE KB ARIAE (FizE41) 202,200
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF=A=+—H 202,200
The balance represents the 19.9998% interest in & /N [E 1R ERERER TR E—RWE R RE
RERBEEHLHE(BRE®) (Guangzhou Hui Yin Wo Feng T EEMERAEREEREE(F
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)) (“Hui Yin REE)(TERKE ) Z219.9998% 1 o
Wo Feng”) acquired upon the completion of acquisition (FERMIEEAT) - ERAREEZEHRERA
of a subsidiary as detailed in note 41. Hui Yin Wo Feng ®E - AEBEZEBE 2B UINBEE
is principally engaged in equity investment. The Group Bl BBARRIEREEEREN_-E
has engaged an independent external valuer to assist the —+tF=ZRA=T—HBZAFE  AFE
management of the Company in determining the fair value of I R E A 2 E A A HER A B
the investment as at 31 March 2017. No change in fair value BERNFEEE -
of available-for-sale investment is recognised in the other
comprehensive income during the year.
27. INVENTORIES 27. 8
2017 2016
—E—tF A
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Raw materials AT 7,506 10,385
Spare parts and consumable B RBED 8,850 7,758
Finished goods 2URY T 10,428 8,038

26,784 26,181
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

28. R 5 B H il FE U iR 3%

2017 2016
—Z2—tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Trade receivables B 5 R 405,645 938,608
Bills receivables e ES 735 23,302
Other receivables H ih fE UL BR FR 13,081 25,032
Prepayments AR 402,378 567,938

821,839 1,554,880

The Group generally requires prepayments made by
customers before delivery of goods or provision of services,
except for certain customers to which the Group allows an
average credit period of 30 to 90 days. The Group also allows
customers to settle the trade receivables before the end of
credit period or to make prepayments to the Group by bills
receivables.

Trade receivables arisen from oil and gas sales contracts are
settled either by bills issued by banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies which are
receivable with an average credit period ranging from seven
days to six months after the date of delivery of commodity to
customers or by telegraphic transfer.

AEBEERXESRRRE 2T —RT

BEFPEMNKIEA  EAKEGL T FHEE
HI30E90RZETEFKRIN - KEE
TAFEFPRNEEMERIEEESE
YRR A BB IR A A K EE LA

e
AN

AHRRARBEER K ZE H KRR
DNEBEREEFRARBER TRERT
MZRIOTBHZREBEHEE - FHEES
B EREEAMRREEE AL
BEXRNEATE -
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. RHARAMBURER ()
(Continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables UTARE=ER B2 2 E 5k
presented based on the revenue recognition date: IR SR BRER D AT
2017 2016
—ZE—t%F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBET T

Within 30 days 30HA 373,365 187,208
31 - 90 days 31&E90H 991 2,435
91 - 180 days 91£180H 2,688 733,548
Over 180 days 180H LA E 28,601 15,417
405,645 938,608

The following is an aged analysis of bills receivables based on UTRENUBEREARz BRERZ

the date of receipt of bills: BREC DA -

2017 2016
—E2—tF —TE-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Within three months =@AR 735 22,210
Three months to six months =@AZENEA - 1,092

735 23,302
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the EEZEAFES ZH - AEEETH
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by BERPZEZEEEEZREEELNEE
customer. The directors of the Company are of the opinion [REE - ARRESBRA  RIEHREL
that the credit quality of the trade receivable balances RN ABECE SRR EH 2
that are neither past due nor impaired as at the end of the FEERBRI  AREBAZERG
reporting period is good as the repayment history of the SRR AT -

debtors is satisfactory.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. B R HMPEURR (#8)

(Continued)

Included in the Group's trade receivable balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB32,081,000 (2016: RMB255,610,000) which are past due
at 31 March 2017, for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the directors of the Company are of
opinion that the amounts are still recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The amount
were fully settled as at this report date.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired are as follows:

FSFARKEE 5 R UAR G R FRIATE
RZZE—tF=A=+—HERHELRL
FREEL R ARKE32081,000T (==
— 7" - AR¥255,610,0007T ) 2 FE IR
AR - NSRBI B AR RRE
B AAARRARESERREBRED
AR - AEEIL EZEERFTRT
AERR - ZFFERARSBEHEE
BB -

BEBERREZE S EBIRR 2 KRR
DT ¢

2017 2016

—ZE—tF —E—RF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFIT

31 -180 days 31£180H 3,480 240,193
Over 180 days 180H A £ 28,601 15,417
32,081 255,610

All trade receivables are assessed not to be impaired
individually and they are further assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. No impairment has been recognised on trade
receivables during both years. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

No impairment has been recognised on other receivables
during both years. The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the other receivables are not impaired as
the amounts mainly represent value-added tax recoverable
and advances to staff which were fully utilised and settled
respectively subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

P B % R & (R E B 5HE R
B - FiteE — S HREFERE - W
18 & [ A 3f 48 B 5 55 18 AR K B 2R
B NEBEY EZFEHRFTH TR
Ham

TA P 18 48 & P 3 488 S L A P LK R R e 2R
BE - RABEZRR - A REUEARR
W ERME - B AERERE EER KO
RERNRERAREKRD D RIFED FAIL
BBREIRTEI ZBR -
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Transfer of financial assets

The followings were the Group's financial assets at the end
of each reporting period that were transferred to banks or
suppliers by discounting or endorsing those bills receivables
on a full recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred the
significant risks and rewards relating to these bills receivables,
it continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the bills
receivables and the corresponding liabilities included in
secured borrowings or trade payables respectively. These
financial assets are carried at amortised cost in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position.

Bills receivables discounted or endorsed

28. B R HMBUIRRR (#8)

BEETEEE

AT RAKEREHRENREBRMNAE
PHERBEEURARSELZTRKE
EMERETROTIMER 2 EREE -
HRAREYBEEZERNERCE
RNEf RO HEERIBEFER
DRFFABEREERE ZRNERZ
HAREZZ2BREE ZFLMEE
TIM AR B 2 4538 MBI R R A 12

ERARYEZ LR
2017 2016
—e—t%E —FTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

Carrying amount of bills receivables from  EWINEEFERZ

external customers ARTEE

Carrying amount of trade and B 5 REMBNERERZ
other payables AREE

Carrying amount of bank borrowings RITIEE ZBREE

735 23,302
(735) (1,252)
- (22,050)
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29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING 29. FEU B A TR

EQUITY OWNERS OF SUBSIDIARIES BARE
Amounts due from non-controlling equity owners of FEWIE A A R E R ETAE

subsidiaries

2017 2016
—Z—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARET T

EMRREBERNDER QT

EMNRREER N ER AR

(Guizhou Gas Group Corporation Ltd.) (MizFa)
(Note a) 11,606 2,904
SEZBEEAR AR SNEZBEEARAR]
(Heze Transportation Group (P 5Eb)
Company Ltd.) (Note b) 1,204 -
12,810 2,904
Note a: The amount represents prepayment for purchase of liquefied natural Mizta: HEASBEARBERICRARMIN2HE
gas and trade receivable, which aged within 30 days based on the date NREREZERBER - RRABRNER
of delivery of goods. The amount is interest-free and repayable on HEIE30K - B RR S RAKRENR
demand. B& -
Note b: The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Mizkb : HESEABER 28 RAREXRE

Fili
o
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30. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY 30. Blf—RBARMEALTRIE

2017 2016
—=2—+t5F —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

B T F IR B R A A BN T F R BRA A

(Guangzhou Circle Energy Company (Tt=geiR]) (BsE)

Limited) (“Circle Energy”) (note) 1,878 480
The maximum amount outstanding during the year is as RERERKE ZRASEEMAT ¢
follow:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-REF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Circle Energy TLF BEIR 68,878 1,841
Note: A company which Mr. Wang is a key management personnel. The Bfsx : TEARETITETEEAS ZAA - 8
amount represents prepayment for purchase of liquefied natural gas BemARBEISRIEAAT ML 2B
and trade receivable, which aged within 30 days based on the date of HEHRIERE AT EER A30E 28
delivery of goods. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable SEWEEZ - BcEAERA . 8

on demand. BB EE -
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31.

32.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
Bank balances carry interest at market rate of 0.35% (2016:
0.35%) per annum, as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.

The pledged bank deposits carrying interest rates at 0.3%
(2016: ranging from 2.50% to 3.08%) per annum, amounting to
RMB186,099,000 (2016: RMB279,915,000) have been pledged
to secure bills payables repayable within six months. Pledged
bank deposits of RMB10,000,000 as at 31 March 2016 (2017:
nil) have been pledged to secure bank borrowings which will
be released upon the settlement.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31. EEWMRITHER RITHRHER

EE&

RSB RASBERSREHBER
ZEARUTZEMRTER - R-F
—tFR-F-AFZA=+—E &
TRBIETIHERE0ISR(ZB—A
F 1 0.35%)T R o

ERBRITHERIEFFAEOIR(ZFE
— N4 250% % 3.08% )5t B E e
& 585 AREE186,099,0007T ( — T — /<
£ ARB279,915,0007T ) 2 K 3 LA
ESERANAEARNEEZENERE -
RZZT—RNE=ZA=+—8 ' ARK
10,000,000 T E B IRITHFR(ZF
—tF  E)BIENESEREER
fRRR ZIRITEE -

32. ® 5 & H fth FE £ AR &K

2017 2016

—2—t%F T —REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Trade payables B 5 IR 309,911 866,091
Bills payables AN 593,664 912,130
Other payables H Ath FE T AR 5K 44,861 30,407
Other tax payables HAth fE T8 18 18,157 17,721
Consideration payable JERRAB 16,735 16,735
Receipts in advance TE R 5K 155,940 16,220
Compensation payable FETEN & 10,255 10,442
Payroll payables JENTE 230 1,515
1,149,753 1,871,261

Trade payables arisen from oil and gas purchase contracts are
granted by suppliers with an average credit period ranging
from seven days to six months after the date of delivery, and
trade payables arisen from production and sales of LNG are
granted by suppliers with an average credit period ranging
from 30 days to 90 days after date of delivery.

ABMERARBEA N ZE BEMER
DEERRMERPREAEANEAT
FZFHEERRD - £ERHEERI(L
ARRZE 5 RNSERAR T EREIZR A
HEA1R30R 290R & 2 FHEE MK
4o
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32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 32. RHRHEMBEFIRRR ()
(Continued)
Besides, certain suppliers will also require to have PEoh - B TR ERE I G E SRR EA R
prepayments received before the supply of materials. RTUERFER R - NEB L ZHES
The Group will arrange for certain of its prepayments or TRNRBINENEBEZE HEMNER
settlement of trade payable by bills payables. e

AT RFA258 5 RNRINHE R
REZRIETZRREDT

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented,
based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016

—Z—tF —ET-REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARMBTFIT

Within 90 days 90H ™A 303,401 849,749
91 — 180 days 91Z180H 2,643 7,040
181 — 365 days 181%365H 1,945 5,050
Over 1 year iR — 1,922 4,252
309,911 866,091

The following is an aged analysis of bills payables based on

AT REZTEBRAPETZIRNRE

the date of issue of bills: BRER DT ¢
2017 2016
—E—LtF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥®TR ARETIT
Within three months —@AAAN 233,600 655,490
Three months to six months =REAZENEAR 360,064 256,640
593,664 912,130
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33.

34.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

33. B BELTREA

2017 2016
—=2—+t5F —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Amounts due to associates AN NCIE ]

12,949 3,203

The amounts represent payables for purchase of liquefied
natural gas which are aged within 30 days. The amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
EQUITY OWNER OF A SUBSIDIARY

ZEREERBERIERARZRER S
I0EAZEMNRE - ZERARER
o RERBERERERE -

34. EfI—FME LR —&IFE

BRESKEEARE
2017 2016
—E—tE A%
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Non-controlling equity owner of —RWE R A — B IR
a subsidiary A A = 10,000

The amount represented short-term advance which was
unsecured and interest bearing at 9.24% per annum with
no fixed repayment term. The amount has been fully repaid
during the year.

R TE AEARE R IR IRERR
924%st B - BEETEEHR - %X
HERAFEREEE -
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35. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 35. BITREMBEHE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Bank borrowings RITIEE 321,180 187,282
Other borrowings HEuEE 118,528 =
439,708 187,282

Bank and other borrowings repayable: JEEEZIRITREMER
— Within 1 year —1FR 415,708 131,282

— More than 1 year, but not exceeding — BB 1F BN BIE2F
2 years 9,000 32,000

- More than 2 years, but not exceeding — HiB2F BT FBBSF
5 years 12,000 17,000
— More than 5 years — 5 E 3,000 7,000
439,708 187,282

Less: Amount due within one year and B R —EREH R ARE

shown under current liabilities BEzE (415,708) (131,282)

\\\

—FREERIASERE

Amount repayable after one year

and shown under non-current liabilities Q%Z%’( 24,000 56,000

Analysed as: DA -
Secured A 439,708 167,282
Unsecured i - 20,000
439,708 187,282
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35.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

The bank and other borrowings due for repayment are
classified based on the scheduled repayment dates as set out
in the relevant loan agreements. The secured bank loans as
at end of each reporting period were secured by the Group's
assets and guaranteed by related parties as set out in notes 43
and 47, respectively.

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to contractual interest rates) on the Group’s bank
and other borrowings are as follows:

5. RITRHEMER (&)

FIfpEEE 2RI REMEEIEMEE
EXmEEBETEERNSE - K&
AR GEIPRITERTIALREER
CEAEREALAEREALER ®m
MIsE43 47T, -

AEEZRITREMEE 2 BRFRE
(TFEAHFERMER) 2 BEMT :

2016
—B—tE —T—X

Fixed-rate bank borrowings ERIRITEE
Fixed-rate other borrowings EEHMEE
Floating-rate bank borrowings FRBRITEE

5.20% - 7.84%
5.00%
6.15% - 8.10%

3.73% - 7.20%
AERAN/A
5.34% — 6.60%

Floating-rate bank borrowings amounted to RMB56,000,000
and RMB88,000,000 at 31 March 2017 and 2016, respectively.
The borrowings are arranged at the interest rate based on
benchmark interest rate from the People’s Bank of China
(“Benchmark Rate") plus, if applicable, a premium and expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2016, the secured bank borrowings included
bills receivables transferred to banks by discounting or
endorsing those bills receivables on a full recourse basis. As
the Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these bills receivables, it continues to recognise
the full carrying amount of the bills receivables and the
corresponding liabilities included in secured bank borrowings
(see note 28 for details).

No bank and other borrowing is denominated in foreign
currency as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

RoE—LER-F-AF=A=+—
B FRRTEEDNAARS
56,000,000 7T } A F # 88,000,000 7T °
ZEEEZFERPARAARRTHR
ff5.2 B A ([ HAF) %)) i £ (408
A)uEARR  EARBERRSR
EFIRER -

R-B—XRE=A=+—0 FEHE
TEERERKERE  ZERKEED
REEBREEEEBEREEZHN
EETIRT  c HRAEBARBEZSE
WREZ AAERRRKER - g
BREIARKREEFTAGRBEIEER
ZHBaEz2BREE(FB RN
28) °

R-E—+F=A=+—BK=-_ZF—7
F=ZRA=+—H  #BERITREME
LASNEESHB o

1

\
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36. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 36. MEBENRIE

The Group leased certain of its vehicles under finance leases.
The lease terms were ranging from three years to five years.
Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases
are 6.9% (2016: 6.9%) per annum. The interest rates are fixed
at respective contract dates. These leases have terms of
renewal or purchase options that the Group has the ability
to continue the lease for a secondary period at a rent or
purchase at a consideration that is substantially lower than
the market value. All the finance lease obligations have been
repaid during the year.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases were secured
by the lessor’s charge over the abovementioned leased assets
(see notes 18 and 43).

AEEREREEOHEEELETER -
MONF=2RF - 2R EBELEE
ZHBNERBF6I% (T —RF :
6.9%) e ZEMERBZEHARETE -
ZEHOTEEHRBERG AKX
SEAENR-—EEHENE_HRA
BRIZEOIABERRTEIRER
S 2 MEMRNEABEERAFEE

o

il

\

e

AREEZmERLAVETIAREAS
MmAEEE AR ERR(RNF18R
43) °

Minimum Present value of
lease minimum lease
payments payments
®ERAS REBASZHE
2017 2016 2017 2016
22—t —F—F ZEZ—tF —T—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE ARBTT AER®TRTE ARETTT

Amounts payable under MEEARSETZ

finance leases RERIA
Within one year —F R - 1,174 - 1,115
Less: future finance charges & : REFERF N/A N/A
= (59) RiEH N 3E A
Present value of minimum =EEEZ2RE
lease payments - 1,115 - 1,115

Less: Amounts due for o ERTZ@EAR
settlement within BB BEE
twelve months (FIARBERE)
(shown under current
liabilities)

Amounts due for R+ A1%E
settlement after 8278

twelve months

- (1,115)
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. B®&
Nominal
value
per Number of
share shares Amount
SiEE BB &8
HK$ HK$'000
BT THT
Authorised: EE
As at 1 April 2016, RZZE—RFMA—H -
31 March 2016 —E-—RF=A=+—H
and 31 March 2017 MZF—+F=RA=+—H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE -
As at 1 April 2015 R-E—RFMNA—H 0.1 5,302,801,915 530,280
Issue of shares 1T D 0.1 380,833,333 38,083
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—ARF=ZA=+—H 0.1  5,683,635,248 568,363
Issue of shares BT 0.1 834,703,704 83,470
At 31 March 2017 R_E—+F=A=+—8H 0.1  6,518,338,952 651,833
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEREBERMEL 2SO
RMB’000
ARETIT
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+tF=HA=+—~H 549,014
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RE=HA=+—H 475,031
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37.

38.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

On 13 February 2017, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement ")
with the subscriber. Under the Subscription Agreement |,
331,000,000 subscription shares will be allotted and issued
by the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.68 per
subscription share. The aggregate subscription price for all
the subscription shares is approximately HK$225,080,000
(equivalent to RMB199,365,000) and the subscription was
completed on 24 February 2017 and 331,000,000 subscription
shares were allotted and issue accordingly.

On 21 March 2017, the Company entered into another
subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement 11”)
with the subscriber. Under the Subscription Agreement II,
503,703,704 subscription shares will be allotted and issued
by the Company at the subscription price of HK$0.675 per
subscription share. The aggregate subscription price for all
the subscription shares is approximately HK$340,000,000
(equivalent to RMB301,485,000). The subscription was
completed on 31 March 2017, and 503,703,704 subscription
shares were allotted and issued accordingly.

Upon completion of the abovementioned two subscriptions
agreements, the issued share capital of the Company is
enlarged from 5,683,635,248 shares to 6,518,338,952 shares.

CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 21 September 2015, 6 October 2015 and 9 October 2015,
the Company entered into several subscription agreements
with Kylin Offshore Engineering Pte Ltd (the “Subscriber”) for
the subscription of a convertible bond in the principal amount
of US$10,000,000 (“Convertible Bond") (collectively refer to as
“CB Agreements”).

Subscriber agreed to subscribe the convertible bond in the
principle amount of US$10,000,000, and the subscription
money in the total sum of US$10,000,000 was paid on 26
October 2015.
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37.

38.

B (48)

R-ZE—+F-_A+=H AAAH
REAGILRE R Z([RERHZEL) -
BERERRE - A2 BERER
&% R B A% 10 0.68 7 JT B2 3 & B 1T
331,000,000 3% 3R 8& B 15 - PTA REE K
D2 HRERE 4 5225,080,0007% 7t (187
BN ARE199,365,0007T) ° REEIE
ER_E—t+tF-_A=-t+MWABRKA
331,000,000 A% 33 % A% 15 B 48 FE T DA
it 3% R AT o

R-E—+E=A—-+—H  AAFHE
RIBAFI L BN RE ([ REWR
) o BIBRERZRI - AR FFIRR
BB TR 0.675/% 7T fic % I %
17503,703,704 % REER 1D - FTH RE
% 17 2 48 7R 88 (8 49 /& 340,000,000/% 7T
(HE R AR 301,485,0007C) ° RE
EEER-_T—tF=A=+T—HEKX
H.503,703,704 8% R B I 1 E M8 FEHb T
VARG 2% K2 35T o

LAl R HETKE C ARRIZE
EEITRR AN 5,683,635, 248 IR A 1 R =
6,518,338,952A% A&7 °

A B R %
R-F-—HFAA-1+—H Z=F—H
F+AXNARZZ—RETANA ' K
A B B B Kylin Offshore Engineering
Pte td ([ RBA ) i RBEA S 8
10,000,0003& 7T 2 AT AR (& 7 ([ AT #2 AR
&% DI Z 0 R (SR [ AR
ExwEl) o

R AR E R A € #10,000,000 5%
TZABKRES  ARRBEERE
10,000,000 T ER_ZE—HF T+ A
iy UNEEZ N
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38.

CONVERTIBLE BOND (Continued)

The Convertible Bond can be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company at HK$0.65 per share, subject to the fixed
exchange rate of HK$7.7495 to US$1.0000, and the anti-
dilutive adjustment, anytime from 22 October 2015 (the issue
date) to the fifth business day prior to the 16 October 2017
(the Maturity Date). The Subscriber shall have the rights to
convert the whole or part of the outstanding principal amount
of the Convertible Bond during the conversion period. The
coupon rate is 6% per annum and is payable quarterly on
31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 December. Unless
previously convertered or cancelled, all convertible bond shall
be redeemed at 100% of principle amount, and settled in US$
on the Maturity Date. There is no early redemption option
by the Subscriber. During the year ended 31 March 2017 and
2016, there is no conversion exercised.

The Convertible Bond contains two components for
accounting purposes: a liability component and an
embedded derivative component, being the conversion
options derivatives. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 16.64% per annum. The fair value of the
liability component at the date of issue was calculated using
discounted cash flow methodology.

38. AR R % (1])

AR & 55 Al 1R B A% 0.65/8 T R A 7K
NAElZ LB - EAET. 74958 TR
1.0000% T2 B EEXRETHRE - AA
BE-Z—RAF+AZ+=ZHETH)E
—E—+F+ A+ NBRIESE)NER
822 A A RE RS e R EEE AR - 1
EINERR - R A B EER 2D
AMBRESFHNAREELASTE - ZEAFE
RE6% BAR=A=+—08 KA
=+8B - AA=+BEk+=-A=+—H
BELA o BRTAI B EE B REEHEI
FrBE AR ESF IR BB ASE
Z100%8E 0 - WAETEHE - REA
WARIRFELSPE BE_T—tFR
TE-RXFZA=ZT+—HBILEFE W&
HEITIE( B -

HEFENME URRESFREFAE
M#ARSTET A (BIRRRESTETR)
MERLD - AEBONERFEFNEA
16.64% - RETHE - AEHHNA
FETIZMRREREETE -
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38. CONVERTIBLE BOND (Continued) 38. AIEAR IR % (4])
The movement of the liability component of the Convertible REFABKRESBEIHDHEBHT
Bond for the year are set out as below: s
2017 2016
—Z—t%F —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARET T

Liability component A EBG
Carrying amount at the beginning FYREE

of the year 56,054 =
Issue of Convertible Bond BITR R ES - 53,095
Effective interest charged to REZRNHIROEREF S

profit or loss (note 11) (BFFEE11) 9,538 3,764
Interest paid B FE (4,060) (1,709)
Exchange loss IE & E1E 3,668 904
Carrying amount at the end of the year FEREME 65,200 56,054
Analysis for reporting purpose: TEFRABMIEL 2D ¢
Current mE 65,200 =
Non-current ERE - 56,054

65,200 56,054
39. EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES 39. RARTTEIR

The US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$77,495,000 or Mt £ 38 B # 10,000,000 % 7¢ (18 & R
RMB63,492,000) Convertible Bond as set out in note 77,495,000 % 7T 3k A R # 63,492,000
38 contains two components, a liability element of TU) R ESFBERVIGERS (R
HK$64,805,000 (equivalent to RMB53,095,000) at initial HI5E38) 64,805,000 7T (HEE M AR
recognition (see note 38) and embedded derivative element 53,095,0007T) Z B f& & & 1522,741,000
attributable to the conversion option of HK$22,741,000 BT (HEE R ARE18,632,0007T ) A%
(equivalent to RMB18,632,000) resulted in a fair value loss BZMARITETEME D - BUERY
of HK$10,051,000 (equivalent to RMB8,235,000) on initial 15 MR EE 4 A T (EE51810,051,00078
recognition. TT(HHER ARS,235,0007T) °
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39. EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES (Continued) 39

—tFE=ZA=1T—HLFE

The conversion option embedded in the instrument

is presented as derivative financial instrument in the

consolidated statement of financial position and are

measured at fair value subsequent to initial recognition with

changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. The fair

value loss recognised in the profit or loss as a result of the

changes in fair value amounted to HK$2,002,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,775,000) (2016: fair value gain recognised of

HK$7,210,000 (equivalent to RMB5,872,000)).

The movement of the option component of the Convertible

- BRAXTTEIR(R)
T AN 2 HRETIREGS

AN K

N2V ANTESRTE  WRVBER
B NFENE  BAFEESHNIER
WNIER - BRAFEE Eba%zoozooo
B (HHE N ARE1,775,0007T)

FEAER B

R (:;—/‘—\i :

ERRB R T ERET, 210 000 T (1 E

NAREES,872,0007T)) ©

REFARREF R D EEHH

Bond for the year is set out as below: FIEATR -
2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E—REF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Embedded derivative component BRAXGTETRBG
Fair value at the beginning of the year FHRYE 12,941 =
Issue of Convertible Bond BITARRES - 18,632
Loss (gain) on fair value change FARHEZEERE (W)
during the year (Note 10) (K¥zE10) 1,775 (5,872)
Exchange loss b X &R 831 181
Fair value at the end of the year FERAFE 15,547 12,941
Analysis for reporting purpose: H2WMAEMIEL 29T -
Current mE) 15,547 -
Non-current FETRED = 12,941
15,547 12,941
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39. EMBEDDED DERIVATIVES (Continued)
The fair values of the embedded derivatives at 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2016 were determined by reference to a
valuation conducted by an independent valuer using Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The inputs and methodology used for
the calculation of the fair values of the embedded derivatives
were as follows:

39. HRARCTETIR(#8)
R-ZE—+F=A=1+—HE-_ZT—X
FZRA=+—HHRAXTETAQF
B 2EB Y HEMERD BN B
EER[ETHHEET - sFTEHRAN
METENATFEMARERLRG AN
N

At At
31 March 31 March
2017 2016
R-ZE—tF R=E—FRF
=A=+—H =A=+—8H

Convertible Bond AR R 5
Share price & & HK$0.75 HK$0.62
0.75#&7T 0.62% 7T
Risk-free rate R R 0.403% 0.426%
Time to maturity EApR 0.56 year 1.56 year
0.56% 1.56%F
Dividend yield % B & 0% 0%
Volatility RE 40.99% 47.96%
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40. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests

Proportion of equity
interest held by
non-controlling

Name of subsidiary equity owners
MELAFRE FERESRBARE
4 §-1:4: 0]
2017 2016

——tF —F-AE

40. B AR EH
BEEAHKZRESZH2ENEA T

g
(Loss) profit
allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests
AEFHEERERZ REHIEHER

(ER)RF Ha

2017 2016 2017 2016

—T—tF —T-F ZB—tF T F
RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTRT ARMTT ARBTRE AR®TT

Xingxing Energy E28R 31.0%
Huixin Energy MEZREIR 31.0%
Huaheng Energy ETER 50.3%
Individually immaterial BB &BEAEKX
subsidiaries with AR
non-controlling mZMEAR N/A
interests FiEH

31.0%
31.0%
50.3%

N/A
TEH

(6,498) (21,057) 68,908 75,406
(14,975) (15,356)  (28,002) (13,027)
3,042 9,357 36,412 38,401

(2,225) (2,641) 2,327 4,552

(20,656) (29,697) 79,645 105,332

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the

Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests are set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts before intragroup

eliminations.

TXEIIGEAEANFFER S A RE
EMBRABZHMBERRE - T XA
MBENRBEEEANMEHENZE
B
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40. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. B2 EIEE (48)
(Continued)
Xingxing Energy EEgR
2017 2016
—=—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREFIT
Current assets MENEE 182,475 277,873
Non-current assets ETBEE 252,810 269,142
Current liabilities mEEE (213,005) (303,511)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (258)
Equity attributable to owners of the RRABER NEE#ER
Company 153,372 167,840
Non-controlling interests FEIER M 68,908 75,406
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40. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

40. [FB AR R H (#])

(Continued)
Xingxing Energy (Continued) EBER ()
2017 2016
—E—t%F —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TIT ARETTT
Revenue W25 466,179 365,153
Expenses 53 (487,145) (433,079)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FEBEBNMEHEMY L
for the year (20,966) (67,926)
Dividend ¥ - 1,000
Loss attributable to: LA AT (G &S -
Owners of the Company RATREB A (14,468) (46,869)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A (6,498) (21,057)
Net cash used in operating activities K EEFTER 255 (120,408) (180,291)
Net cash from investing activities KEEEER T TR 53,323 49,614
Net cash from financing activities mMEEEEIREFR 65,405 127,347
Net cash outflow RE ML FE (1,680) (3,330)
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40. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

40. [FB AR R H (#])

(Continued)
Huixin Energy EZEER
2017 2016
—=—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥®TR AREFIT
Current assets MENEE 113,244 133,220
Non-current assets ETBEE 357,340 390,805
Current liabilities mEEE (556,371) (562,865)
Non-current liabilities EREBAG (4,539) (3,182)
Equity attributable to owners of the RRATER NEE#ER
Company (62,324) (28,995)
Non-controlling interests FEIER M (28,002) (13,027)
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40. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. B 2B RE ()
(Continued)
Huixin Energy (Continued) EZREIF ()
2017 2016
—Z—tF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TIT ARETTT
Revenue W25 345,533 665,583
Expenses 5 (393,837) (715,124)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FEBBNMEHEMY L
for the year (48,304) (49,541)
Loss attributable to: LA AT FE(EETE -
Owners of the Company RAREBA (33,329) (34,184)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A (14,975) (15,356)
Net cash used in operating activities AR 2R 558 (39,299) (30,104)
Net cash used in investing activities REEBIFAER S FHE (184) (54,054)
Net cash from financing activities mMEEEE RS FRE 37,459 84,428
Net cash (outflow) inflow We ORI RAFRE (2,024) 270
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40. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. BT ZHE (#8)
(Continued)
Huaheng Energy ZEDRR
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARET T

Current assets mBEE 47,065 41,048
Non-current assets EMBEE 163,337 155,781
Current liabilities MEE=NE (114,028) (64,502)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (24,000) (56,000)
Equity attributable to owners of the RRABER NEE#ER

Company 35,962 37,926
Non-controlling interests FEIER M 36,412 38,401
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40. INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. BT ZHE (#8)
(Continued)
Huaheng Energy (Continued) ZESRR ()
2017 2016
—Z—tF —E-REF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBET T

Revenue W zs 168,149 187,574
Expenses F (162,102) (168,974)
Profit and total comprehensive income FEGF MEEU AL

for the year 6,047 18,600
Dividend A% 8. 10,000 6,000
Profit attributable to: LA AT

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZ =N 3,005 9,243

Non-controlling interests FEIE R A 3,042 9,357

Net cash from (used in) operating activities L& ZEBETE(FTFE) 2

&5 3,139 (41,288)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities & & EB) (FT#E) TSR & 558 (21,225) 17,839
Net cash from financing activities mMEEEAE RS T 36,786 13,547
Net cash inflow (outflow) REmACRL ) F5E 18,700 (9,902)
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41. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 21 March 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the registered
share capital of BMB TR EERBRAF (Guangzhou
Ju Yuan Investment Development Company Limited) (“Ju
Yuan”) for a consideration of RMB1. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method. The amount of
gain on bargain purchase arising as a result of the acquisition
was RMB339,000. Ju Yuan is principally engaged in the
investment holding.

41. KRB AR

RZE—+F=A=+—H8 "EEMN
REAREITKEENBETEEER
BRAR(ET]) 2 MR - 5z
BHERAWEEESHEE - WH 2 &EE
U B Uk 25 & A R #339,0007T » oo+
EREREER -

Consideration transferred RMB
EEEAE AR
Cash B& 1

Acquisition-related costs were insignificant and have
been excluded from the cost of acquisition and have
been recognised as an expense in the period within the
“administrative expenses” line item in the consolidation
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

WEB R AL T E A B W EEHEK B
A - RRGEER KM EKA
HRZ [1TTHAX AR THERSHAR
e

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of REEAHEkE-SEROCREZA
acquisition are as follows: BmTF :
RMB'000
ARETTT
Deposit paid for acquisition of an associate BB E N B2 ES 190,748
Available-for-sale investment AHERE 202,200
Long-term receivable R H R FIE 32,187
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KRR E 3
Tax payable FE TR (1,545)
Trade and other payables BH5REMEMER (3,461)
Other borrowings HEMEE (419,793)
Net assets acquired BREFEE 339
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41. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 41.

(Continued)
The fair value of long-term receivable at the date of
acquisition amounted to RMB32,187,000.

Gain on bargain purchase arising on acquisition:

Wiz Ris PY B 22 B (#8)

KRB R - REBKGAZ AFER
AR#32,187,0007T °

e S (R R L -

RMB'000
ARBTTT
Consideration transferred EEEAE -
Less: Net assets acquired B BN FEE (339)
Gain on bargain purchase arising on acquisition — WHEEE 2 #E UK 339
RMB'000
ARBTT

Net cash inflow on acquisition of Ju Yuan: KWEBTZHERARE
Cash consideration paid ERNBEeNRE -
Less: bank balances and cash acquired W B 2 RITAEBRKRIES (3
3

Gain on bargain purchase of RMB339,000 arose in the
acquisition of Ju Yuan is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

No revenue for the year is generated from Ju Yuan nor
contribution to the result for the year from Ju Yuan.

WBBRTEEA  ZEBEREARE
339,000 TR ER & B KAt 2 E A
MR AR ©

RN FRALEEE AW - WEE
TREEAIERA -
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41.

42.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2016, total
group revenue for the year would not have changed and
loss for the year would have been RMB86,641,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2016, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the
Group had Ju Yuan been acquired at the beginning of the
current year, the directors have determined borrowing costs
based on the funding levels, credit ratings and debt/equity
position of the Group after the business combination.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustee.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Company contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution
is matched by employees but subject to a maximum amount
of HK$1,250 (equivalent to RMB1,108) per person per month
prior to June 2014 and revised to HK$1,500 (equivalent to
RMB1,330) per month for each employee thereafter, which is
matched by employee. In addition, the Group’s contribution
to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC
are expensed as fall due while the state government in the
PRC undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retirees of the qualified staff in the
PRC. The Group is required to contribute certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents contributions payable to
the schemes by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of
the schemes.
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42.

Wiz Ris PY B 22 B (#8)

WEEER-_T—"FNA—B%=K
FRZEBERSBBERERSTEMTEN
E 1B FE B AR 186,641,000 - EE
BHEEFARR AU RBEBRREED
R-ZE—AREMA—B XK AEEETE
YERBRREE ZTBR -

EEBRRCNAFEFIRBERITEAR
SEZ [HZ RS FGHNE - EFT)
REBEAEERERE GHHRZBEKFE
EERRRER, BREKTEEEERX
o

iB tnR U Bt
FEBMARMAREEZ AEREER
URESE B o SHEIZEETDMEEA
THZESHE  BAKEZ BEHH
BRI -

RNRAEAEIESTEIK BT EMER
AEBIERA 5% (BB TMELEEE
"R R-E-—MENBAEBAT
B&%1,2508 T (FHER ARY1,108
L) BB AERERS A 1,500
T(HRENRARK1,3307T) * EETFE
HETEME o pHN - AEEF P EBAT
B8 2 RREAE 2RI RE LR
PIERISE » TR BB T A s AR A 38
BERARRPEZEERERKEEZR
FEHM o  REBBEBIERARZETH
EARBRKRBHNFEER - LABEH
RIEES -
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43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The following assets were pledged at end of each reporting
period as collaterals for certain banking facilities granted to

43. REEH

THEERSHREPRRS TEM - R
AEBERE TRITRE 2B Hm

the Group:

2017 2016
—Z—tF —E-RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TIT ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment held REMERNTEZ
under finance leases M - BB k& = 7,423
Other property, plant and equipment B - BE KK 510,016 552,517
Land use rights + b {E R 21,145 22,294
Pledged bank deposits EEMIRITIFR 186,099 289,915
717,260 872,149

As at the end of each reporting period, equity interests in

REREHRR - ETHBRRZERIR

certain subsidiaries were pledged to banks to secure loan BEHEMTRT  FAAEEREZE

facilities granted to the Group.

44. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(a) Operating lease commitments

HEE Z A

(a) AREHEERE

44. RiERNARBH

The Group as lessee FREFERKEA
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT
Minimum lease payments paid REEFENZHRAEMER
under operating leases for EHAKEEE
its office premises during the year 3,047 2,787
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44. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(Continued)
(a) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

44, %iERBAEA(1])

(a)

REHERE(H)
RBERR - NEERE T
HEREHOEN Z ARREES
AEZBEERT

follows:
2017 2016
—Z2—t%F AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTIT
Within one year —F R 1,257 1,140
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEZHF  BREEME 2,551 1,760
Over five years AFNAE - 398
3,808 3,298

Operating lease payments represented rental payable
by the Group for certain office premises. Leases were
negotiated for an average term of one to two years.

(b) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, the Group issued financial
guarantee to the banks in respect of bank loans
obtained by associates of RMB135,000,000 (2016:
RMB60,000,000), representing the amount that could
be required to be paid if the guarantee was called
upon in entirety by the bank. In determining whether
financial liabilities should be recognised in respect
of the financial guarantee contract, the directors of
the Company exercise judgment in evaluation of the
probability of resources outflow that will be required
and the assessment of whether a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
of the financial guarantee contract is insignificant at
initial recognition and the directors consider that the
possibility of the default of the associate involved is
remote, accordingly, no value has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
the end of reporting period. Should the actual outcome
be different from expected, provision for losses will be
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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45.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts (which
include amounts due to associates, amount due to non-
controlling equity owner of a subsidiary, bank and other
borrowings, obligations under finance leases and convertible
bond disclosed in notes 33, 34, 35, 36 and 38 respectively,
net of bank balance and cash) and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issue, the issue of new debts
or the redemption of existing debt.

45.

BEERER

AEBZENEE 5B BB LEE
mEEH&ETE - ERAKETER
AREREZH  TRERAERAR
o AN B2 EERIE R —FRIT D

AEBZEARBEREER(BREME
333435 36%389 RIHKE 2 BN
B QR FOR - AN — B QB IRE
BEmBEB A ZFKE - RITREME
5 BEBROAERABBRES - fk
RITHEBRRE) RARBER ARE
m(BREBITRARER) -

ARPEETERRFATEARE - ERI
e < —H#bD  BEFEEREAKRARE
BEXMME 2ER - REBEEFZ2
& AEEMEERMRE - BITHK
-~ BITHESIBORAEY - T
HEBEANRE -
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. &t T H
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) TWMITEDHE
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
Financial assets SMEE
Loans and receivables BRI AR
(including bank balance and cash) (BERITEHERS) 1,179,976 1,429,182
AFS financial asset A ESREE 202,200 -
Financial liabilities SRMAR
Amortised cost B PR 1,511,440 2,110,065
Fair value through profit or loss BRATER AR
(FVTPL)
Embedded derivatives BRARITETLAR 15,547 12,941
Obligations under finance leases A EASE - 1,115
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HIBEEEEHBERKE

The Group’s major financial instruments are trade and
other receivables, amounts due from non-controlling
equity owners of subsidiaries, long-term receivables,
amount due from a related party, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, available-for-sale
investment, trade and other payables, amounts due
to associates, amount due to a non-controlling equity
owner of a subsidiary, bank and other borrowings,
obligations under finance leases, embedded derivatives
and convertible bond. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

The management monitors and manages the financial
risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk assessment which analyses exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk, and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are sets
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the market
risks of changes in exchange rates and interest rates.
There has been no significant change to the Group's
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk over the years.

Currency risk

Certain subsidiaries of the Company have entered into
certain foreign currency transactions, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of reporting period are as follows:

46. &R T R (#8)

(b)

BMBEEEEBERBE (&

B EEBARBERE (DR
BB RN EERERER
SELERBZMBRR - ZF
R BET SRR (BEINER
@ AR R E A ERER)
EERREREE AR - 0
IR ZF R 2 BRI T X
EEEEE R EEZ SRR AR
REE Z 15 A K B 36 A Rt
T o

HEER
AREYEBARTEREER
HERD 2 AR - RESEF
B AREESEY SRR
ERRGBHAR T AL E
KEH -

H¥RE
ARRBZHMBARCII LA
THERS  BUEAKEEERI
PEE LR

R B - A B AN EHE
CEMAERER AR EEE
T :

Assets Liabilities
BE A\
2017 2016 2017 2016
—Z—tE Z2—RFE ZZT—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR#®TRE ARETT AR®BTRE AREBTT
United States dollars ~ ZET([ZET])
("Usb") 378,091 9,480 68,721 64,612
HKD BT 9,046 1,323 - -

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

ARE BRI EINEEPER - AT
BEESEITINER R AN A HEE
ZREMERINERE R ©
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% (2016: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against
relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2016: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. 5% (2016: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. A positive (negative)
number below indicates a decrease (increase) in loss for
the year where RMB weakening 5% against the relevant
currencies. For a 5% strengthens of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite

impact on the loss for the year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

46. EMT R (48)

(b)

BERBEZRBERKE (&)

5 B B% (48)
TREINAEBEHARE LB
GNEE TR NK5% (=B — 7R ¢
5%) 2 BREEFFIE - MRERESN
EBRRBUIINEHEZHARAINE
BT B - WIS BRSNS [E
REB)S%(ZF—NF : 5%)1EIE
HAAEE o 5%(ZF—7RNF : 5%) )
MEZEEBEABRNIBEMINER
MERAZHRBELER  IREK
BIEEHIINEEEXA LS IR EE)
ZiHE c TXIE(B)EERTAR
ks 5 BRI INE BT B 5% T B A A F
EEERLGEM) - AREHSE
BAINE FHES% T - YWAFEEE
HEKEEERTZE -

The Group's operating cost includes: REBKERREIE
2017 2016
—E—+t%F A
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TIT ARMBTIT
usb
Impact on the loss for the year HAFEBERTE 15,469 (2,757)
HKD
Impact on the loss for the year HAFEEERBZTZE 378 55
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate
on bank balances and the variable rate bank borrowings
which carry at prevailing deposit interest rates and
variable rate based on the interest rates quoted by the
People’s Bank of China, respectively.

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to its fixed rate pledged bank deposits, long-term
receivables, deposit paid for acquisition of an associate
and fixed rate bank and other borrowings. The Group
currently does not have interest rate hedging policy to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank balances and bank borrowings at the end of each
reporting period which was assumed to be outstanding
for the whole year and the stipulated change taking
place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the year in the case of instruments
that have floating rates. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease for variable rate bank borrowings is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by 50
basis points in respect of bank borrowings and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax loss
would increase/decrease by approximately RMB238,000
(2016: RMB374,000) for the year.

46. &R T R (#8)

(b)

BERBEZRBERKE (&)

2 L BR

AEBERRTEHBRBITERET
B (D HRRITERH KR RFEA
RBITAARANEGFEZFEFE)
Z BTG X E B i @ b2 3R

TRENEREAR -

AEBEZRAFEMNXEREZY
REBEMEE N FRITER
RHEIEWRIR - A8 — R B &
NAZ BENRE K EEMRET
REMEE o A5 E BRI EF
REPBRE P EM KRR - R
m:EEERBERERKEEY
FHE AN EEE

AEEEGETRAEERF
KR FBEHRAMERBE
TRBREE—F -

T E G E

AT 8REDWIRES RE D
RZFBRITHEBRBITEE (R
RRBEFEREEE) M EEAR
ERERMBFERRRREY
REBFERFTZ(ERER
TA)MAmE - sLFBRITERMN
- AMMEIEERABERM
KA AT BRSOBEER RE

- AEEEHAETREARSY
B2 3Pk -

WBERBBTIEEZFNELER T
BRSO B FT A B fib & B M+
N BIAEERATFEZ R
MEEBBSEM RO OARE
238,000 (= F—RF : AR
374,0007T) °

183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iRA M ERR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE—

—tHE=ZA=1T—HLFE

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by
50 basis points in respect of bank balances and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's post-
tax loss would decrease/increase by approximately
RMB2,262,000 (2016: RMB305,000) for the year.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk on embedded
derivatives component of the Convertible Bond for the
year ended 31 March 2017 as set out in note 39.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group is required
to estimate the fair value of the derivative component
of the Convertible Bond (the conversion option), with
changes in fair value to be recognised in the profit or
loss as long as the Convertible Bond is outstanding. The
fair value will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in the Company’s share
price and share price volatility.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
10% higher and lower in the share price of the Company
and all other input variables of the valuation model were
held constant.

46. &R T R (#8)

(b)

BERBEEZRFERKE (&)

FlE MR (&)

T E G/ ()
WMAEBRITEBRZAELT T
B% 50 & B M P A H b & Bl 45
T8 AXRKEBERAFEEZR

MEBBERD TENHOARE
2,262,000 (ZF—7~F : AR
#:305,0007T) °
Hfth (4% R P&
N SE30FTE  BHE T —+4F
ZA=+—BLt=EE " ZIKE@E

EﬁéﬁT%Hﬂf#Zﬁl)\iﬁ?ﬁEI
AROERNEBRRR

BE_Z—+tF=A=+—HItF
B - RAEAREENAIRRES
REBAMGF A RRESFTETA
#Bin AR ER) WA FE - XE
BENERAXNTEEZS ATEE
R(HEPBRE)AARIREEE KR
BERPNEEXBETE

UWMES

TRALAEEHARRAREL

H&TBEHO% C MEEEARA
THABBGR I E 2 GRE -

10% higher 10% lower
LEFH10% TR10%
2017 2016 2017 2016
—Z—tF —ZE—RF ZZ—tF ZT—KF
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRE AR¥TT AR®WTRE AR%®T
(Increase) decrease in ~ ANFEEEE (3E) R
the loss for the year (4,333) (4,518) 6,470 3,941
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis above ERERE  BHRZEFHRAA
is unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the ETANGEMERZEEERN
pricing model used in the valuation of these embedded BRERER  mMETEHEE

derivatives involves multiple variables and certain
variables are interdependent.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in
prevailing market commodity prices of oil and gas
products as the Group entered into oil and gas purchase
and sales contracts with its customers and suppliers. The
Group manages these commodity price risks through
entering into oil and gas purchase and sales contracts
within a short period of time. Accordingly, the Group
minimises its exposure to such risk and is subject to
short term price fluctuations in the prevailing market
commodity prices in the intervening periods between
entering into the oil and gas purchase and sales
contracts.

The Group does not expose to commodity price risk
as all sales and purchase oil contracts entered with
counterparties during the year ended 31 March 2017 are
completed before the year end date except one sales
and one purchase oil contracts which were entered into
with the counterparties closed to 31 March 2017 and the
delivery was made in early April 2017, the commodity
price risk is considered as minimal.

46. &R T R (#8)

(b)

BERBEZRBERKE (&)

i (R4S R bR
RRAKEEETS REREET
YHAHERRAREBEAHN A%
BAXBEBEOBAMRARERLZ
BRI SR RERKEZER
AEEZEBERPANIZAMR
AARBBERNNEEZFEM
EREER o Fit - 26 B K HE &
H¥ZuBERBREERE - XXE
RINAHERRAREEAKNZMHE
BHZEMMSEMER RS
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ZIARHEEGHNEREHA
RISERK » B I AR 5% [ 3 8 A 2 7
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantee provided by the Group arises from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statements
of financial position.

The management closely monitors its credit exposure
by implementation of policies for necessary follow-up

46. &R T A ()

(b)

BERBEZRBERKE (&)

ERmRRE
AEBHERZRAEERRIR
BERA MR IRKR Pt 2 B RE
ERRTMEEREE  ZEE
REeESFHRERITAEER
AEBREHERMBERMESEE
ERHHER -

EEEEBNEEFERTRE
RRBEZREEREVEER

actions to minimise its credit risk throughout the year. In EERR  BHEZERKBMRESR
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amounts of 1K o thoh » REBFRKHE A F

amounts due from each counterparty at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks in the PRC with high credit
rankings.

The credit risk on bills receivables are insignificant
because all bills receivables are bank acceptance bills
issued by state-owned banks and aged within 180 days
at the end of each reporting period.

The Group is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk on trade receivables arisen from oil and
gas transactions, with exposure spread over certain
counterparties and customers. The Group, through
the Company’s five (2016: five) subsidiaries, entered
into a number of contracts to purchase and sell oil and
gas. In general and as part of the Group’'s prudent
measures, a short duration is kept between each buy
and sell transaction. Such oil and gas contracts involve
nine (2016: thirteen) suppliers and thirteen (2016:
fourteen) customers, nine (2016: eleven) suppliers
and thirteen (2016: ten) customers of which are
independent from the Group. For the year ended 31
March 2017, approximately RMB2,253,000,000 (36% of
total gross amount of oil and gas sales contracts) (2016:
approximate RMB4,802,492,000 (85% of total gross
amount of oil and gas sales contracts)) of contracts that
are settled in cash on a gross basis are entered into with
one single customer which is a third party.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As part of the measures to mitigate the credit
concentration risk, each individual debtor has been
monitored closely and on an ongoing basis. In addition,
gross amounts of oil and gas sales contracts are settled
either by letter of credit or bills issued by the customers’
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies and are receivable with an
average credit period ranging from seven days to six
months after the bills of lading date of delivery or by
settlement in cash.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use
of borrowings. The management closely monitors the
liquidity position of each company within the Group and
expects to have adequate sources of funding to finance
the Group's operations.

The directors of the Company closely monitor
the liquidity of the Group. Taking into account of
(i) the internally generated funds and (ii) the available
long-term loan facilities of RMB344,640,000 and
RMB28,936,000 with maturity up to September 2017
and September 2019, respectively, pursuant to the
relevant facilities documents, the directors of the
Company are confident that the Group will be able to
meet its financial obligations when they fall due in the
foreseeable future and be able to operate on a going
concern basis.

46. &R T R (#8)

(b)
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46. EMT R (48)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIXEBEEZEEHEZERHE(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) E)E & W BE (4)
The following tables detail the Group’s contractual TRFVASECRHEBENEGL
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been FEE c ZRERRBRDERLKEE
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of AIERNANKEBSHRES
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which BEENRERBERERE -
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes ZREBENERANEERER
both interest and principal cash flows. = o
On Total
Weighted  demand or undiscounted
average within 61-180 181-365 12 2:5 Over cash Carrying
interest rate 60 days days days years years 5 years flows amount
REXEE FHRAE
miEFE Re0XA  61E180X  181EF365% 15285 2E55 SENE hERE FEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ABRFTT AE®TR ABRRTRT AR®TR AERRTR AR®TT AERTR ARRT:
As at 31 March 2017 RZZ-t£ZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial KL RMAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables BAREMERER - 993,583 = = = = = 993,583 993,583
Amounts due to an associates  JEN—THBZ A FIZUE - 12,949 - - - - - 12,949 12,949
Convertible bond AR ES 16.64 - 2,067 68,965 - - - 71,032 65,200
Bank borrowings BileE
~fixed rate ~EEfix 5.207.84 102,713 64,603 103,231 - - - 270547 265180
- variable rate —FBHE 6.15-8.10 589 24,915 8,897 10,239 13,806 3,043 61,489 56,000
Other borrowings AthfEE 5.00 - 124455 - - - - 124455 118,528
Financial quarantee contract BT #£IRAH) - 135,000 - - - - - 135,000 -
1,244,834 216,040 181,093 10,239 13,806 3,043 1,669,055 1,511,440
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46. EMT R (48)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIXEBEEZEEHEZERHE(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) E)E & W BE (4)
On Total
Weighted demand or undiscounted
average within 61-180 181-365 1-2 25 Over cash Carrying
interest rate 60 days days days years years 5 years flows amount
FERRE
RERE nERE
ETHRE  RORA  61Z180K  181Z365K 122F 255F SEME EAE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
As at 31 March 2016 RZS-R"EZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial FiERMAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables L5 REMENEDR - 1,853,526 - - - - - 1,853,526 1,853,526
Amount due to an associate [Ef—RBEAAE = 3,203 = = = = = 3,203 3,203
Amount due to a non-controlling B —Rif B E— &R
equity owner of a subsidiary  REREARAFE 9.24 10,000 - - - - - 10,000 10,000
Obligations under finance leases B4R #)AE 69 22 565 327 S = - 1,174 1,115
Convertible bond TRES 16.64 = 1942 1932 66,749 = = 70623 56,054
Bank borrowings HiTEs
—fixed rate -EEfl% 3731.20 28,529 32,940 41,016 - - - 102,485 99,282
- variable rate —FEF% 5.34-6.60 865 25,313 9,786 34,284 19,478 7,35 97,081 88,000
Financial quarantee contract ~ BHERAH - = 60,000 = = = = 60,000 =
1,896,405 120,760 53,061 101,033 19,478 7,355 2,198,092 2,111,180
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

46. &R T A ()

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIBERBREEHERBEE(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) E)E & W BE (4)
The amounts included above for financial guarantee NEHBERENNSRE - DE
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could EROSXSHHFRER  AE£EH
be required to settled under the arrangement for the BIELZHETEL N2 ERRE
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the MEmei -  BRERSHANE
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations B - AEBREPKRUGERER
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers BESZ SHEMIGRIE - 28T+ & (A AT
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be ERIRIHEFHRERRENT
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate MmN  c ERFHGEFHBED
is subject to change depending on the probability of the EROEERIEZIEEERL
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a B EAT{EZIERA A= 18
function of likelihood that the financial receivables held K o
by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.
The amounts included above for variable interest rate i/ ZEF R 2 BB T RN S H®E
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is BARBTE 2MEFE - EXRATS
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates ZIIETESREBEZEHFANET
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at EoXETHE -
the end of each reporting period.

(c) Fair values (c) FE
Fair value of the Group’s material financial assets BEFHEEELDATFEHEZSE
and financial liabilities that are measured at fair SEEXSNSTERSMERZ
value on a recurring basis ST E

Some of the Group’'s material financial asset and
financial liability are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these
financial asset and financial liability are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used),
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 46. @M T A (#)
(c) Fair values (Continued) (c) RFE(E)

Fair value as at Valuation technique(s)
31 March 2017 Fair value hierarchy & key inputs

RZ2—t%¥

ZR=+—-BZAFE LFEER HERTRMBBAE

Available-for-sale investment ~ RMB202,200,000 Level 2 Market approach

(2016: N/A) Based on the recent transactions price of identical

or similar assets on the market

I ERE ARH202,200,0007C FH5 [iiko)s
(ZZ—R"F : ~ER) Wimi%ﬂﬁlﬁﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬂx%mﬁ
valuation Significant
Fair value as at Fair value  technique(s) unobservable
31 March 2017 hierarchy & key inputs input(s) Sensitivity
RZS—tF HERER
ZA=T-HZATFE LTFESR REBAE EXTAHEBAE BRE
Embedded derivative RMB15,547,000 Level 3 Binomial Option Volatility of 40.99%  The higher the
component of (2016: Pricing Model (2016: 47.96%) volatility in share
convertible bond RMB12,941,000) The key input is is applied in the price, the higher
share price, Convertible Bond  the change
risk-free rate, by reference to embedded
time to maturity, the share price derivative
dividend yield, of the Company ~ component of
and volatility convertible bond
AfRER, ARE15547,0000  E=H7 ZEAMREERES K1R40.99% REREMS - A7
WA STE AR = Rs [ UNERE (ZF—R"%F: BRES 2 AR
AR 112,941,0007T) B mRE A= 47.96%)EARE  (TEIARNED
i'JEHHﬂ R &E Hﬁl BREH(ZELL HER
=ERKR Al RE)
There were no transfers between levels of the fair value REBEE-_ZE—+EFER _FT—F
hierarchy during the year ended 31 March 2017 and =B=+—8H ¢¢§Q$E§&EU
2016. Z A mER o
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair values (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial liabilities

The movement of embedded derivative component of
convertible bond is set out in note 39.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the loss on fair
value change of embedded derivative of HK$2,002,000
(equal to RMB1,775,000 (note 10)) is recognised to profit
or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the loss on fair
value change of embedded derivatives of HK$2,841,000
(equivalent to RMB2,363,000) (note 10) included
(i) a fair value loss of HK$10,051,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,235,000) on initial recognition; and (ii) a fair value
gain of HK$7,210,000 (equivalent to RMB5,872,000)
relating to financial liabilities that were measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair values (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial liabilities (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of debt and derivative
components of Convertible Bond, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuer to perform the
valuation of the debt component of convertible bond.
The directors work closely with the qualified external
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. In determining the valuation
assumptions and inputs, the directors take into account
the market-observable data as well as factors specific to
the Company’s Convertible Bond, as follows:

o Dividend yield — estimated based on the historical
dividend yield of the Company at the end of the
reporting period,;

J Risk free rate — referenced to the yield of Exchange
Fund Bills & Notes at the end of the reporting
period;

o Volatility — estimated based on the share prices of

the Company'’s historical volatility;

J Share price — referenced to the share price of the
Company at the valuation date;

o Time to maturity — referenced to the remaining
years of the Convertible Bond

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets and
liabilities are disclosed above.

46. &R T A ()

(c)
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair values (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of
financial liabilities (Continued)

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values. The fair values of debt component of Convertible
Bond is derived using discounted cash flows at an
appropriate debt yield from comparable bonds in the
markets.

46. &R T R (#8)

(c)

RFE (4R)
ERMARE=ZROFEABZHER
(#&)

BRTIERMHL  EFRE - R
BB mMRTREHEKAZALZ
TREERERABZEEEE
BOERYE- - JRRESEE
WM ZAFETERRTH AL
BREFZEERHRBERNR L
RERERSHH -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
REE NFEE REE ~EE
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#®TRT AER®TRKT AR%Tx ARETE
Financial liabilities £Fi& &
Debt component AR ES 2
of Convertible (v 3=
Bond 65,200 65,191 56,054 55,945

The fair value of the debt component of Convertible
Bond categorised as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is
determined and using a debt yield of comparable bonds
by assuming the credit strength of the Company to be
CCC equivalent.
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND A7. AREBEATZ SR REMEE
OTHER DISCLOSURES
Balances with related parties are stated in the consolidated BEEREAT 2 ERETINGE TR
statement of financial position and the related notes. SRR AR R o
Save as disclosed in respective notes above, the Group had b FaAEREM R EEIN  AREBZA
the following transactions with related parties: FEALTRZST ¢
2017 2016
—E—t%F ZE—RF
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR®TT ARBTT
a) Sales of LNG to an associate a) ;gﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬁ_lﬂﬁﬁﬂ’.
- Jiu An Xi Shun Logistics —NZEIRY® = 1,585
b) Sales of LNG to related parties b) giﬂﬂﬁkﬂ:ﬂﬁﬁﬂ:f
— Circle Energy — LT RER 1,144 32,661
- HEERPIEM (note 1) —ﬁﬁﬁf’ﬂ B () N/A
REH 86
c) Sales of oil and gas contract c) HEAMRXAREH
—HEERPIER (note 1) —RERMEM(HE) N/A
&R 725,963
— Circle Energy (Hong Kong) L7 BEIR (B )
Co., Limited (note 2) BRAE(PE2) - 15,597
— Circle Energy —TLF R 26,550 5,481
d) Purchase of LNG from a related d) RMEREALEERIL
party XRRE
- %;J’%F'ﬂ B (note 1) —RERMEM(HE) N/A
&R 39,646
- Circle Energy —TLF R - 3,290
e) Purchase of LNG from an associate e) ﬁigﬁﬁ‘ NFIHMERE
=
— Guiran Pipeline Company —BEMREEANT 127,773 135,989
f) Purchase of oil and gas contract fy BEGHWRXREEH
- W5 RMIEM (note 1) —REERMER (M) N/A
K& A 275,655
- Circle Energy (Hong Kong) — LT R (BE)
Co., Limited (note 2) BRAR(FE2) 111,329 76,036
g) Interest income from a related g) KEfBﬂﬁkiZﬂE
party
—%?EF%F'EJ ER (note 1) —REERPIEM(FEE) N/A
KA 12,838
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
OTHER DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Note 1:  The company is a subsidiary of Circle Energy during the year ended
31 March 2016. On 31 March 2016, Circle Energy has disposed of &
2R PIE M and no longer considered it as related party of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Note 2:  The company is a subsidiary of Circle Energy.

h) Guarantee given by related party in respect of bank

47. AREALI X AR EMIKE
(#&)

Miz1: RBEE-—FT-—R"F=ZA=+—HLHF
B ZRATRRTFHRZIMBRR - K
—E-RXF=ZA=+—RH TTERE
HERZERMER  YTRBE—FT—+
FZA=Z+T—RALEFERETBERAEKE
ZHRBEAL -

Miz2: BRAR/TFRBEZIHMEAR -

anp

h) FREALIRZEMERZBIT

borrowings and banking facilities granted to the BEEREBITHMSFHZIESR
Group
2017 2016
—ZE—t%F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETTT
- Mr. Wang —Fk4& = 900,000

i) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of members of key management of
the Group other than the directors and chief executive
of the Company during the year are as follows:

i) EEBTBARZTHH
AEBEZTE2ZERBEKRE(RRAF
ZEZERITBRBEIRIN 2 FEH

Eoy/ (NI
2017 2016
—Z—tf —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

Compensation of key management FEEBABZHM
personnel
Basic salaries and allowance HEARE 2 KRR 3,940 2,168
Contributions to retirement benefits RAREREEIH R
schemes 648 296
4,588 2,464
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of

48. FRFIMBAKRBER

R|BERR - NAB 2P AR ARRBE

the reporting period is summarised as follows: L N
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TTT ARETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BRFZIEE 4,097,748 4,078,437
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU I B A B B 380,727 290,055
4,478,475 4,368,492
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables E b pE U BR 53X 40 39
Bank balances and cash IRTTEBR MRS 382,592 731
382,632 770
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables HoAth FE AT BR 5K 6,686 638
Convertible bond Al AR E S 65,200 =
Embedded derivatives BARSTETA 15,547 -
87,433 638
Net current assets MENBEFH 295,199 132
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREDEE 4,773,674 4,368,624
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 48. A TIHMEIRRBE(IE)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end of RIREHR » AR A 2 AR IwmE B
the reporting period is summarised as follows: (Continued) e (&)
2017 2016
—ZE—t%F —E-RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARET T

Capital and reserves AR AR K 4
Share capital N 549,014 475,031
Reserves (note 49) T (M 5E49) 4,224,660 3,824,598
Total equity RS ERR 4,773,674 4,299,629
Non-current liabilities IERBEE
Convertible bond AR ES - 56,054
Embedded derivatives BARSTETA - 12,941
- 68,995
4,773,674 4,368,624
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49. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

49. &L T # R

Share Other Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
B iR | Hfth G 18 5 G 0 RItER ot
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note)
(FizE)
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—AFNA—H 3,872,431 62,921 (178,113) (85,860) 3,671,379
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFARZARX
expense for the year B = = = (5,527) (5,527)
Issue of shares BIIRG 158,746 = = = 158,746
At 31 March 2016 RZB-—RE=ZA
=t+—H 4,031,177 62,921 (178,113) (91,387) 3,824,598
Loss and total comprehensive ~ AFEBARZAMAY
expense for the year ek - - - (20,775) (20,775)
Issue of shares BT 426,867 = = = 426,867
Transaction cost attributable to ~ E{TH L BREMLZ 5
issue of new ordinary shares XA (6,030) - - = (6,030)
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+F
=A=+—H 4,452,014 62,921 (178,113) (112,162) 4,224,660
Note: The other reserve represents the credit arising from the capital reduction MisE : H A B ERAEDRTEE 2 ERRE - R

where the par value of each existing share was reduced from HK$0.10 to
HK$0.01 by the cancellation of HK$0.09 of the paid-up capital on each

existing share in prior years.

NEIRSE B AT FESRRERMD 28
RRAEEH0.0958TT - FERBEARD ZE
fEEH0.108 7T HIR 2£0.0178 7T ©
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50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. B 2 ETS

Details of the Company'’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and

2016 are as follows:

Nominal value of

ARNBR_BE—+FER-_F—~F=H
=T HZHBRBFBOT :

Percentage of nominal
value of issued share

Place of issued ordinary capital/registered
incorporation/  Place of share/paid-up capital held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital Company Principal activities
ML/ BRTEER /BEER  FLFARHCRGORS/
HELRRE fidp it EEE REmE EMREsEECEA  TERE
2017 2016
ZE-tf _T-iF
Ying Luen International Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$240,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding and oil
Investment Limited* contracts trading
BRERRAERAT] &R i 240,000,000/ 7 REBRRAMENEE
Union Honor Limited* BVI BVI HK$464,332,742 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
BRBRAA RERZES  RERLHS 164,332,142 T AR
BMTFBRRERAR" PRC PRC RMB351,597,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
(note b) (Registered capital: and sales of liquefied
RMB957,000,000) natural gas
(Hiztb) t i ARE351,597,0007 REBRRRICRAREE
(EMER : ARK
957,000,0007C)
PALETERRRERAA  PRC PRC RMB120,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Production and sale of
Xingxing Energy liquefied natural gas
EERR Gl T AE#120,000,0007 EERHERIRAR
EMNTESLRERAT PRC PRC RMB70,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Production and sale of
Huixin Energy liquefied natural gas
EZER P e AE#70,000,00070 EERBERLRAR
EMETRRREARAG  PRC PRC RMBA40,000,000 49.7% 497%  Sale of piped gas
Huaheng Energy (note a)
EFTER (Mita) P e AR 40,000,007 HEEBRAR
TEGRMRBREMAG  PRC PRC RMB26,700,000 57.3% 57.3%  Vehicle gas refuelling
stations and sale of
liquefied natural gas
i H AE826,700,00070 REMAIER
HERILAAR
RNMESMRARAR PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 69.0% 69.0%  Production and sale of
liquefied natural gas
i i AK%10,000,0007 EERBERIAAR
EMETRABRARD PRC PRC RMB22,800,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
G i AR %22,800,0007 RERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. B A TS ()

(Continued)

Nominal value of

Percentage of nominal
value of issued share

Place of issued ordinary capital/registered
incorporation/  Place of share/paid-up capital held by the
Name of subsidiary registration operation registered capital Company Principal activities
ML/ ERTEER @R FARBHERTRE/
HELRER 3Rk RSB BXmE EMEFEECERE EERE
2017 2016
—Z-t§ —TF
BMBRTREZRERAR  PRC PRC Nil 100.0% N/A  Investment holding
(note ¢) (Registered capital:
RMB30,000,000)
(fstc) t G Z TER  REAR
(AR :
AR #30,000,0007C)
EMPRERRREERAR*  PRC PRC Nil 71.0% N/A Power distribution and
(note d) (Registered capital: related service
RMB201,000,000)
(Mizkd) e R z ~ER  EEREERS
(EMER:
ARH201,000,0007T)
Fully World Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Oil trading
SEERAA 3 &b 18T RRES
Firmwill Investments Limited BV BVI US$1 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
ERRERRAH RERAEE  REBRAES 1% RERR
BMEEMmEERRAR  PRC PRC US$990,000 100.0% 100.0%  Oil and gas trading
(note b)

(HfzEb) G Gl 990,000% 7 RHRAARES
Colourful Rite Limited * BVI BVI US$10,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding
FRERLT ABRABE  RERLES 10,000% 7T RERR
& They are subsidiaries indirectly held by the Company. & ZERRARNRREEFBEZHBRRE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE_T+tF=A=1+—HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. B A TS ()

(Continued)

Notes:

(a) Pursuant to a supplementary agreement entered between the Group
and a 50% equity owner of Huaheng Energy on 28 December 2012, the
equity owner has committed to follow the voting direction and decision
of the Group on shareholders’ meeting and board of directors’ meeting
except for certain special resolution relating to increase or reduction of
registered capital, merger or spinoff, change of legal form, dismissal or
liquidation and amendments to memorandum and articles of association
of Huaheng Energy. As such, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group has obtained control over Huaheng Energy and

has accounted for Huaheng Energy as a subsidiary of the Group.

(b) The subsidiaries are set up as wholly-owned foreign investment
enterprise registered in the PRC.

(c) The subsidiary is acquired by the Group on 21 March 2017 (see Note 41).

(d) The subsidiary is set up by the Group on 11 January 2017.

(e) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31 March
2017 or at any time during the year.
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Financial Summary of Five Years

AFEPHHE

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_Z—+tF=A=1+—HILFE

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group changes the
presentation currency of its consolidated financial statements from
Hong Kong dollars to Renminbi (“RMB").

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

published audited financial statements and being translated and

presented in RMB appropriately, as below.

RBE_Z-—AF=A=+—HLLF
B AREGEMBHREZ2INEHEHR
BLEERBARE(TARE]) -

AEBERED AN BRFER 2 FEHEN
REENBEBEDHEACTELR
B BHmE  YRAREZABRER 2
FIg -

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=+—-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2014 2013
—E—+E —E—RE —T-1E —F-NE —E-NE —T-—=F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(restated)
(&=5)
RESULTS F
Turnover ] 7,972,843 6,841,169 6,440,317 9,991,396 7,782,850 5,246,314
(Loss) profit before tax BFial(EE )RR (91,328) (6,086) 29,418 227,477 (4,756) 28,220
Income tax (expense) credit R (EX)EL (13,919) (13,935) 3,127 (59,290) (184) (11,870)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(EE) RN (105,247)  (20,021) 32,545 168,187 (4,940) 16,350
At 31 March
R=A=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2014 2013
—E—tE —E—NE —T-hE —T-NE -—E-NE —T-=£
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERBTE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(restated)
(& =5)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HERAR
Total assets mEE 3,008,258 3,082,805 2,619,242 3,756,663 1,590,100 2,488,680
Total liabilities BafE (1,744,611)  (2,204,205) (1,904,760) (3,072,068) (1,524,393) (1,927,680)
Net assets FEE 1,263,647 878,600 714,482 684,595 65,707 561,000
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